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Boards’ Report

To,
The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 29" Annual Report on the business, operations and
state of affairs of the Company and the Accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023,

- ._..1 .

Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company

~ The financial results / highlights of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and

March 31, 2022 are as under;-
Amount in Rupees (in lakhs)

Particulars 2022-2023 2021-2022
Total Revenue 8,561.86 14,275.86
Total Expenses 5,817.93 8,273.34
Profit after tax for the year 2,078.19 4,057.70
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) (6.20) 8.64
Less: Amount transfer to reserve ufs 45I1C 415,64 811.54
Add: Profit carried forward from previous year 9,678.37 6,423.57
Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet 11,334.72 9,678.37
Loan Book 52,035.82 45,510.31
Capital Adequacy Ratio 48.05% 47.72%
Dividend

In order to conserve the resources of the Company, your Directors do not recommend dividend for
the year under review.

Reserves
During the year under review, the Company has transferred Rs. 415.64 Lakhs to Special Reserve
in accordance with Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

Deposits
The Company did not hold any public deposits at the beginning of the year nor has it accepted any
public deposits during the year under review.

Information on the State of Affairs of the Company

To explore new avenues and to cater the MSME Sector, Supply Chain Finance Business i.e. a
Short Term Working Capital finance to Vendors ("Seller”) under Anchor led programs has been
pursued by the Company. The Company has also tied up with multiple Co-Lending Banks for its
Supply Chain Financing business enabling a) Competitive Rate of Interest-Given the competitive
cost of funds from Co-Lending banks, we can provide the facility at lower blended rate of interest
(ROI), b) Better Portfolio Quality-A competitive ROl will help in attracting corporates of better
pedigree resulting in good Portfolic Quality and ¢} Leveraging Technology-The Company has
Supply Chain platform to enable seamless experience for all the stakeholders.

Further, the Company has engaged into Co-lending alliance / partherships under both the Models
as per the RBI Guidelines on Co-Lending and all the assignment transactions undertaken during
the year were under the Co-lending arrangements, hence, not disclosed separately. The Company
initiated numerous steps inter alia end to end digitalization of Supply Chain Finance, hiring of
personnel to augment Supply Chain Finance Segment, efc;
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During the year under review, your Company has generated revenues from operations amounting
to Rs. 8,559.93 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 14,265.74 Lakhs for the financial year ended March 31,
2022, Total Revenue including other Income for the even period stood af Rs. 8,561.86 Lakhs.
The total expenses for the period under review was Rs. 5,817 .93 Lakhs which includes finance cost
of Rs. 1,330.83 Lakhs and reversal of impairment on financial instruments of Rs. 66.18 Lakhs.

Net result for the year was Profit (after tax) of Rs. 2,078.19 Lakhs.
6. Share Capital & Capital Adequacy

During the year under review, there has been transfer of 63,432,315 equity shares (representing
21.88% of the paid up capital of the Company) from Investment Opportunities |V Pte. Ltd. (SSG) to

Qf\.’!f‘M—H-GI-dings—Flr-i-v-a-te—i:imi-ted—(—Fer—m-erf-y—kn-own—as—Farm'ride—Priv*a’re—l:'rmTtEd),_an_Afﬁl‘létﬁf—
Shapoorji Pallonji Group, hereinafter referred as SMCM. As on March 31, 2023, Shapoorji Pallon;i

And Co. Private Limited (SPGPL) and SMCM holds 53.12% and 46.88% respectively of the paid

up capital of the Company. The paid-up capital of the Company as on March 31, 2023 is Rs,
2,899,762,960/- divided into 289,976,296 Equity Shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- each. The

Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Company as on March 31, 2023 was 48.05% higher than the

statutory limit of 15% prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India. The breakup of Capital Adequacy

Ratio as on even date was Tler [ Capital at 46.80% and Tier Il Capital at 1.25%.

7. Subsidiary and Associate Company _
As on March 31, 2023, the Company does not have any Subsidiary nor any Associate company.

8. Finance
During the period under review, your Company has not borrowed any new funds. CRISIL has
assigned to the Company CRISIL A-/ Stable (pronounced CRISIL A minus rating) for its long-term
Bank loan facilities upto Rs. 1,000 Crores and has also assigned CRISIL. A~/ Stable (pronounced
CRISIL A minus rating) for the Non-convertible Debentures issuance upto Rs. 500 Crores.

The total outstanding borrowing of the Company as on March 31, 2023 is Rs. 10,334.17 lakhs which
includes Term Loans from Banks of Rs. 6,864.34 lakhs, Warking capital Facility from banks of Rs.
3,469.83 lakhs.

During the year under review, there were no instances of one time settlement with any of the Banks
or Financial Institutions, hence, the requirement of disclosure of amount of difference i e. valuation
at the time of one time settlement and at the time of taking loan from Bank, efc is not applicable,

9. Internal Financial Control Systems and their adequac

The Company endeavors to have adequate system of Internal Controls that commensurate with its
size and nature of business to safeguard and protect the Company from losses, unauthorized use
or disposition of its assets. The Company has also appointed Internal Auditors for review of financial
and operating controls at regular intervals which are presented to and reviewed by the Audit
Committee of the Board. Al the transactions are properly authorized and reported to the
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for proper
maintenance of the books of accounts and ensuring timely reporting of financial statements.
Further, the Company follows the RBI Master Directions for NBFCs not accepting / holding public
deposits.

The Board has adopted policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s Policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention
and detection of fraud, etror, reporting mechanisms, accuracy and completeness of the Accounting
Records, and timely preparation of reliable financial disclosure.
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The Company has initiated numerous steps to strengthen the policies and processes, internal
financial controls including several digitalization drives for robust operational control and risk
management. The Company has also taken additional steps to strengthen the meticulous
compliance with varicus applicable Rules and Regulations.

10. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company

which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the report

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this
Report.

11. Change in nature of business

12, Risk Management
Your Company endeavours to have an effective Risk Management Framework in place which

provides for risk identification, risk assessment, risk evaluation, monitoring, tracking, mitigating and
feedback mechanism and framework to identify, evaluate business risks and opportunities. The
Risk Management framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the
business objectives and enhance the Company’s competitive advantage. Risk Management and
mitigation is a continuous process and is integrated with all the areas of the Company’s business
operations and culture.

Further, the Board has initiated various steps to further enhance and strengthen the controls on risk
management. The Company plans to undertake various initiatives to strengthen the policies and
processes, internal controls,

13. Vigil Mechanism ‘
The Company has in place the Vigil Mechanism / Whistie Blower Policy for its Directors and
Employees to report their concerns or grievances in accordance with the provisions of Section
177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Meetings of Board and its
Powers) Rules, 2014. During the period under review no cases were reported under the Vigil
Mechanism. )

14. Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace

The Company is committed to providing and promoting a safe and healthy work environment for all
its Employees, The Company has framed a Policy on ‘Prevention of Sexual Harassment at
Workplace' which is in line with the statutory requirements, along with a structured reporting and
redressal mechanism, is in place. Your Company has alsc complied with the provisions relating to
the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH Act) and the constitution of
the Committee is in accordance with POSH Act and the Committee includes external member with
relevant expertise. During FY 2022-2023, no case was reported under the provisions of the POSH
Act and the Policy framed thereunder.

15. Human Resources

For Shapoorji Pallonji Finance Private Limited (SPFPL), people are the most important assets and
core strength of our business. The Company has consistently been agile and has enhanced its
human resource practices and systems to match up to the best in the industry. During FY 2022-23,
SPFPL employed 15 employees in various roles for the Supply Chain Finance Business and
continues to grow further in this business segment. The Company has always prioritized the safety
and health of its employees and their families and it has undertaken various measures, ensuring
access to preventive, curative heaithcare and safety measures. In addition to the above, SPFPL
has continued to focus on developing employees’ talent internally to ensure a strongly engaged,
motivated and capable workforce.
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The Company continues to attract proficient professionals for various roles which has us helped
build a transparent, meritorious, and performance-driven culture in the organization. Guided by the
right teadership, the Company successfully attracts, creates, and promotes a professional and
purpose-driven team. As a part of SPFPL’s strategy to groom future-ready talent, we encourage
cross-functional movements and upskill them through ‘Education, Exposure and Expsrience’.
SPFPL has been ambitiously taking internal initiatives for the career development of its employees,
Employees are encouraged to take up professional courses i.e., individual training programs / enrol|
themselves In company-initiated programs, to upgrade their knowledge and skills. Leadership
Development programs like *SHIKHAR” and Post Graduate Executive Management Program with
S.P.Jain Institute of Management and Research like “Udaan”, are some opportunities provided to
the employees to upskill themselves. Such planned growth opportunities enable the Company to
attract and retain top performers, It also enables them to manage transition and become efficiently
productive.

Diversity in educational backgrounds and experience of incoming employees strengthens the
team'’s in-house expertise. SPFPL continues to focus on maintaining gender parity by maintaining
a healthy ratio of women to men in the workforce through our women-focused talent management
initiatives.

The employee strength of your Company as on March 31, 2023, was 39 (Thirty-Nine),
16. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

During the period under review, the following changes took place in the Board of Directors of the
Company:-

Name Effective Date Remarks

Mr. Jai Mavani, Non-Executive Director | July 25, 2022 Ceased to be Director
Mr. Vinod Bhandawat, Non-Executive | August 25, 2022 Appointed as Director
Director

Mr. Mahesh Tahilyani, Non-Executive | October 1, 2022 Ceased to be Director
Director

Mr. Shankar Krishnan, Non-Executive | January 18, 2023 Appointed as Director
Director

As on March 31, 2023, the Board of your Company comprised Mr. Shapoorji Pallonji Mistry, Mr.
Kuppuswamy Subramania, Mr. Shankar Krishnan, Mr. Vinod Bhandawat and Mr. Sanjay Hinduja.

During the period under review, there was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP") of
the Company. The following were the KMPs of the Company as on March 31, 2023:-

Mr. Sanjay Hinduja - Managing Director & CEQ
Mr. Pankaj Gupta — Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Preeti Chhabria — Company Secretary & Compliance Officer.

17. Number of Meetings of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors duly met 6 (Six) times during the year under review viz. April 29, 2022, June
30, 2022, August 25, 2022, November 7, 2022, January 18, 2023 and March 13, 2023,

The number of Board Meetings attended by each Director of the Company is as under:-

Name of the Director : No. of Meetings
Held during | Attended by
the tenure | the Director

Mr. Shapooriji Pallonji Mistry, Non- Executive Director 6 6
Mr. Mahesh Tahilyani, Non- Executive Director” 3 1
Mr. Kuppuswamy Subramania, Non- Executive Director | 6 6
Mr. Jai Mavani, Non- Executive Director** 2 2
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18.

Mr. Sanjay Hinduja, Managing Director & CEO 6 6
Mr. Shankar Krishnan, Non-Executive Director® 1 1
Mr. Vinod Bhandawat, Non-Executive Director# 4 4
*Mr. Mahesh Tahilyani ceased to be a Director of the Company w.e.f, October 01, 2022.
**Mr. Jai Mavani ceased to be a Director of the Company w.e f. July 25, 2022.
*Mr. Vinod Bhandawat was appointed as a Director w.e.f. August 25, 2022.
#Mr. Shankar Krishnan was appointed as a Director w.e f. January 18, 2023.

Corporate Governance
The Company have been following the Corporate Governance Guidelines for NBFCs laid down hy

the Reserve Bank of India from time to time. In accordance with the Corporate Governance
guidelines, the various Committees have been constituted by the Board of Directors of the Company
and the Board has ensured best corporate practices to increase the investors’ and other
stakeholders’ confidence.

19,

20,

21.

22,

23.

A summary of the Corporate Governance measures adopted by the Company are provided in the
Corporate Governance Report annexed to this Report as Annexure B.

Extract of the annual return
The Annual Return referred in Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is available at the website
of the Company https://www.shapoorjipallonjifinance.com/stakeholders-information/

Particulars of Employees
The Company being a Private Limited Company, the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies

Act, 2013 read along with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company.

Statement of Declaration by Independent Directors
The provisions of Section 149(4} of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) pertaining to the

appointment of Independent Directors do not apply to the Company and, hence, no declaration
under Section 149(7) of the Act was required during the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

Management and Discussion Analysis

Information on the operational and financial performance amongst others, is also given in the
Management and Discussion Analysis annexed to this Report as Annexure A and is in accordance
with the RBI Master Directions for Non-Banking Financial Companies not accepting / holding Public
Deposits.

Corporate Socjal Responsibility initiatives taken during the vear

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of the Company has
adopted the Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Policy. The Annual Report on the CSR is
annexed as Annexure C infer afia covering the initiatives undertaken by the Company towards CSR.
Further, the CSR Policy of the Company  can he accessed from
https:/iwww .shapoorjipallonjifinance.com/stakeholders-information/.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board comprised following Directors of the
Company as its Members:-

Mr. S. Kuppuswamy Non-Executive Director
Mr. Sanjay Hinduja Managing Director & CEQ
Mr. Shankar Krishnan Non-Executive Director.
Mr. Vinod Bhandawat Non-Executive Director
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24,

25.

i 26. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with-Related-Parties

27,

28,

29,

30.

31.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186 of the Companles Act,
2013

The Company being a Non-Banking Financial Company, the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (except sub-section 1 to Section 186} are not applicable to the Company.

Maintenance of Cost Records
The Company being a Non-Banking Financial Company, the provisions of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.,

Related party transactions that were entered during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis
and in the erdinary course of business and in accordance with the Related Party Transaction Policy
of the Company. The details of Related Party Transactions as required to be disclosed by Ind AS-
24 on ‘Related Party Disclosures’ specified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements, All
related party transactions of the Company are approved by the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors of the Company. The Material Related Party Transactions are disclosed in Form AQGC-2
as Annexure D to this Report. The Related Party Transaction Policy of the Company is enclosed
and can be accessed from https://www.shapoorjipallonjifinance.com/stakeholders-information/.

Compliance
The Company has taken appropriate steps to comply with the applicable regulations of RBI from

time to time. Further, your Company has drawn the financial statements in accordance with Ind-AS
and is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards as specified by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

Significant & Material Orders

During the year under review no significant and material orders have been passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations
in future.

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors

During the year under review, neither the Statutory Auditors nor the Internal Auditors has reported
to the Audit Committee under Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud
committed against the Company by its officers or employees, the details of which would need fo
be reported in the Boards' Report.

Statutory Auditors.

At the 27" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on September 30, 2021, M/s.
Khandelwal Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.105049W) was appointed as
the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of 27 Annual General
Mesting (AGM) till the conclusion of the 30t AGM of the Company to be held in the financial year
2024-2025 in accordance with the provisions of the RBI Guidelines on Appointment of Statutory
Auditors,

Secretarial Audit

The Board had appointed CS Mehul Raval, Practicing Company Secretary to conduct Secretarial
Audit of the Company for the financial year 2022-2023. The Secretarial Auditor had conducted the
audit and their report thereon was placed before the Board. The report of the Secretarial Auditor is
annexed herewith as “Annexure — E” to this report.

Shapootji Pallonji Finance Private Limited

Registered & Corporate Office — SP Centre, Courtyard 108, 41/44 Minoo Desal Road, Colaba, Mumbai — 400005
Tel No.- +91 22 67490000 Fax No. +91 22 66338176 e-mail- spfinance@shapoorji.com

Waebsite hitps:/fwww.shapcorjipallonjifinance.com/

CIN:UB85920MH1994PTCO77480



The Report of the Secretarial Auditor to the Members of the Campany for the financial year 2022-
2023 does not contaln any observations or qualification.

32. Infermation Technology

At Shapoorji Pallonji Finance Private Limited, we are constantly evolving our systems to use the
best possible technology solutions available. These include availability of all our applications on our
managed private cloud with remote synchronisation to another datacenter in case of any disaster,
securing data by using state of the art firewalls, ensuring ready availability by using redundant lease
Iines. The Company has been able to successfully minimize the impact of covid forced work from
home by using tools like secure VPN for remote working, securing data leakage on devices by using

MDM and MAM Technologies, backing-up-all-the-data from-servers-and-deviceste-a-h ighly-secore——————————
managed cloud service and industry levef data encryption on all laptops. Also, the Company has

introduced systems like workflow based Digital signatures, e-stamping, V-CIP, Credit Rating

System, Regulatory Compliance Management System and Leave Management System. The

Company is in the final stages of going live with its end-to-end digitalization of supply chain finance

system, which provides integrations with Anchor’s systems to onboard and finance their vendors.

33. Proceedings under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

There are no proceedings filed against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016 (“Code”), as amended, before the National Company Law Tribunal (*NCLT") or any other
courts during the financial year 2022-23,

The details of application made / pending and proceedings filed by the Company under the Code
during the financial year 2022-23 are as provided below:

1. Jumbo Finvest (India) Limited (“JFIL"): The Company has sanctioned term loan facility of Rs,
25,00,00,000 (Rs. Twenty Five Crores) (“Facility”) vide Facility Agresment dated March 27,
2018, for a period of 36 (Thirty Six) months. The Facility was credit enhanced infer-afia by
Personal Guarantees, from the promoters of JFIL, namely Mr. Ajay Kumar Singh, Mr.
Siddharth Singh and Mrs. Rekha Singh (hereinafter coltectively referred as “Guarantors”).

The Company had filed company petitions under Sections 60 & 95 of the Code read with Rule
7(2) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy (Application to Adjudicating Authority for Insolvency
Resolution Process for Personal Guarantors to Corporate Debtors) Rules, 2019 against the
Guarantors (*Company Petitions”) before the Hon'ble Nafional Company Law Tribunal, Jaipur
Bench ("Adjudicating Authority”) on June 03, 2021. Pursuant to the order dated February 20,
2022 the Company Petitions were dismissed as non-maintainable. Subsequently, the
Company filed appeals before Hon’ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, Delhi
(“NCLAT"). Pursuant to the order dated January 18, 2023, all the appeals filed by the
Company were allowed and order of the Adjudicating Authority dated February 20, 2022 was
set aside by the NCLAT. The Company Petitions filed by the Company were held maintainable
and are revived before the Adjudicating Authority to be proceeded in accordance with law.
The Guarantors filed an appeal before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India which was
dismissed by the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India by its order dated May 1, 2023,

2. Rajesh Construction Company Private Limited (“RCCPL"): The Company has sanctioned
short term facility of Rs. 15,00,00,000 (Rs. Fifteen Crores) {*Facility”) vide Facility Agreement
dated April 16, 2019, for a period of 6 (Six) months. The Facility was credit enhanced inter-
alia by Personal Guarantees from the promoters of RCCPL, namely Mr. Haresh Raghaviji
Patel and Mr. Rajesh Raghavji Patel (hereinafter collectively referred as “Guarantors”) and
Pledge of shares aggregating upto 76% of the paid up equity share capital of RCCPL.
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The Company had filed company petitions under Section 7 of the Code against RCCPL before
the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench on October 26, 2020. The
petition was admitted on May 13, 2021 and corporate insolvency resolution process was
initiated. Pursuant to an appeal filed by Mr. Haresh Raghavji Patel, in the capacity of erstwhile
Director of RCCPL, before the Hon'ble National Company Law Appellate Tribunal, Delhi,
challenging the order dated May 13, 2021, the constitution of the committee of creditors
(“COC”) was put on hold and the parties were allowed the possibility of settlement. The parties
entered into consent terms, dated September 23, 2021, which were breached by Mr. Haresh
Raghavji Patel. Subsequently, the appeal was dismissed as withdrawn and corporate
insolvency resolution process against RCCPL was resumed and COC has been constituted.

The Company has filed company petitions under Sections 60 & 85 of the Code read with Rule
7(2) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy (Application to Adjudicating Authority for Insolvency
Resclution Process for Personal Guarantors to Corporate Debtors) Rules, 2019 against the

Guarantors-before-the-Hon'ble National Gompany-Law Fribunal-Mumbat-Bench-(Adjudicating
Authority”) on September 22, 2022. The Adjudicating Authority has issued notices. The Interim
Resolution Professional has filed his report.

34, Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo

Given the nature of activities of the Company, the requirement of Section 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 with regard to
conservation of energy are not relevant and no particulars arise in the Company’s case.

For Technology Absorption- Kindly refer Point No. 33 of the Boards’ Report on Information
Technology. During the year under review, the foreign exchange earned in terms of actual inflows
was Nil and the Foreign Exchange Outgo in terms of actual outflows was Rs. 75.75 Lakhs
{converted in Indlan Rupees),

35. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to
Directors” Responsibility Statement, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and
ability, confirm that;

(@) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed afong with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of
the company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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Annexure A
Management Discussion and Analysis

Industry Overview (Source: RBI Annual Report F.Y. 2022-23)

In an environment of formidable geo-economic fragmentation, elevated global food, energy and
commodity prices, aggressive monetary policy tightening and spillovers, the Indian economy exhibited
resilience in 2022-23. After the short-lived Omicron wave and a successful inoculation drive on a world-
wide scale, with 64.20 per cent of world population fully vaccinated as on March 31, 2023, the resilience
of the global economy stood out, causing the International Monetary Fund {IMF) to revise estimate of
global growth for 2022 to 3.4 per cent in April 2023 from 3.2 per cent in October 2022.

In India, a recovery gained momentum during the second quarter of 2022-23 as domestic supply chains
nermafised-and-aetivity-in-contact-intensive-sectorsrebounded-Robustbatance sheets of thecorporate——————————
sector and banks enabled a rebound in credit demand, which was also facilitated by a large increase in

capex by the centre. With real GDP growing by an estimated 7 per cent, the Indian economy turned out

to be one of the fastest growing major economies of the world during 2022-23.

Headline CPI inflation, which was projected by the Reserve Bank before the war started in Ukraine to
moderate to 4.5 per cent in 2022-23, surged to 6.7 per cent. The Reserve Bank raised the policy repo
rate cumulatively by 250 basis points (bps) and changed the monetary policy stance to withdrawal of
accommeodation, prioritising price stability while remaining mindful of growth. In view of the dominance
of supply side factors in shaping the inflation trajectory, the government introduced several targeted
item specific anti-inflationary measures,

Sound macroeconomic fundamentals, a resilient financial system reflected in healthy balance sheets of
banks and non-banking financial companies (NBFCs), and a deleveraged corporate sector imparted
resilience to counter the adverse global spillovers. As of March 2023, the non-food credit growth (year-
on-year) was robust at 15.4 per cent, same as that of the nominal GDP for 2022-23.

Reguiatory Landscape — Major Initiatives

Considering the evolution of NBFCs in terms of size, complexity, and interconnectedness within the
financial sector, the Reserve Bank had put in place a scale-based regulation for NBFCs in October
2021 to align the regulations for NBFCs with their changing risk profile. This framework categorises
NBFCs in base layer (NBFC-BL), middle layer (NBFC-ML), upper layer (NBFC-UL) and top layer
{NBFC-TL) and states that the upper layer shall comprise those NBFCs which are specifically identified
by the Reserve Bank based on a set of parameters and scoring methodology as provided in the
framework and envisaged that the top ten NBFCs in terms of their asset size shall always reside in the
upper layer. For this purpose, a list of 16 NBFCs-UL, identified as per methodology specified in scale-
based regulation for NBFCs, was released on September 30, 2022.

As per the instructions contained in Master Direction on Systemically Important Non-Deposit Taking
NBFCs (NBFC-ND-8I), if the consclidated asset size of all NBFCs within the same group was 2500
crore and above, all non-deposit taking NBFCs in the group were categorised as NBFC-ND-SI,
irrespective of their individual asset sizes. On similar lines, under the scale-based regulatory (SBR)
framework (applicable from October 1, 2022), it was advised that total assets of all the NBFCs in a
‘Group’ shall be consalidated to determine the threshold for classification of NBFCs in the Middle lLayer.
This threshold currently stands at 1,000 crores and above as per the SBR Framework.

To improve governance in NBFCs in the middle and upper layers, instructions were issued authorising
the Board of NBFC/Committee of Directors to sanction loans aggregating ¥5 crores and above to
directors, their relatives, and associated entities. Loans to senior officers are required to be reported to
the Board. The regulations of NBFCs in the middie and upper layers have been harmonised with those
applicable to banks, and it has been mandated that NBFCs must ensure that the borrowers have
obtained necessary prior permission from governmentflocal governmentiother statutory authorities in
respect of Loans involving Real Estate Projects.
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The Reserve Bank has also issued Guidelines on Compensation of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
and Senior Management in NBFCs dated April 29, 2022. After the introduction of scale-based
regulation framework for NBFCs, instructions were issued on specific disclosure requirements to
specific NBFC layers on areas like exposure (capital market, sectoral and real estate), related party
transactions, complaints, divergence in asset classification and provisioning, corporate govetnance,
elc.

In order to address concerns arising out of unbridled engagement of third parties, mis-selling, breach
of data privacy, unfair business conduct, charging of exorbitant interest rates, and unethical recovery
practices, the ‘guidelines on digital lending’ were issued on September 2, 2022. The guidelines are
based on the principle that lending business can be catried out only by entities that are either regulated
by the Reserve Bank or are permitted to do so under any other law. The guidelines aim to make the
lending process fransparent and fair by, inter alia, {i) mandating flow of funds between lenders and
borrowers only through their bank accounts without any pass-through account/pool account of any
customer; (iii} transparent disclosure of the key facts of the borrowing arrangement, including the all-
inclusive cost to a borrower; (iv) ensuring need-based collection of data with audit trails backed by
explicit customer consent; and (v} putting in place an appropriate privacy policy with regard to customer
data.

Extension of Guidelines on Legal Entity Identifier (LEI) for Borrowers of NBFCs and UCBs - The LEI
guidelines were extended to UCBs and NBFCs. Further, the threshold above which all non-individual
borrowers were required to obtain LE] was reduced from Rs. 50 crores to Rs. 5 crores. Accordingly, all
non-individual borrowers of scheduled commercial banks (SCBs), All India Financial Insfitutions {AlF1s),
local area banks {LABs}, small finance banks {SFBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs) having total
exposure of Rs. 5 crores and above are now mandated to obtain LEI in a phased manner.

issuance of Consolidated Circular on Opening of Current Accounts and Cash Credit (CC)YOverdraft
(OD) Accounts by Banks -To enforce credit discipline amongst the borrowers and to facilitate better
monitoring by the lenders, a circular dated August 8, 2020 was issued on ‘opening of current accounts
by banks — need for discipline’. Considering the feedback received from various stakeholders,
subsequent circulars on the subject were issued on November 2, 2020; December 14, 2020; August 4,
2021 and Qctober 29, 2021. To provide clarity on the instructions and put all instructions in one place,
a self-contained circular on the subject consolidating all the extant instructions was issued.

Account Aggregator Framework - The Account Aggregator (AA) eco-system is witnessing increased
traction as major public sector banks have joined the framework and other financial sector regulators
(FSRs), viz., the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), Pension Fund Regulatory and
Development Authority (PFRDA) and fnsurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India
{IRDAI), have advised their respective regulated entities to join the framework as financial information
provider (FIP). Further, with a view to facilitating cash flow-based lending to micro, small and medium
enterprises (MSMES), goods and services tax network (GSTN) has been included as a FIP under the
AA framework. The Department of Revenue, Gol, shall be the regulator of GSTN for this specific
purpose. As a result, the number of registered non-banking financial companies (NBFCs) AA, FIPs and
financial information users (FIU) are expected to increase substantially. In view of the growing number
of participants in the ecosystem, the Reserve Bank is taking well considered and nuanced approach, in
consultation with the Reserve Bank Information Technology Private Limited (ReBIT} and other
stakeholders, to make the ecosystem more robust, address the technical issues of the growing
ecosystem and facilitate further growth of the same.

Opportunities
- Under-penetration of financial services / products in [ndia. NBFCs cater to the heeds of both
the retail as well as commercial sectors and, at times, have been able to develop strong niches
with their specialized credit delivery models that even larger players including banks, have
found hard to match.

- Initiatives of the RBI on Policy alignment and fatent credit demand in certain segments not
catered by the Banks. RBI implements major changes In a structured manner providing
companies operating in NBFC Sector adequate time to adapt and adjust.
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- Introduction of array of new products to meet the varied requirements of customners,

- Given the growing interconnectedness of NBFCs with other segments of the financial system,
the Reserve Bank has issued guidelines on scale based regulations for NBFCs on October 22,
202%. The Reserve Bank has also issued guidelines on December 14, 2021 to extend the
prompt corrective action (PCA) framework to NBFCs. These measures will strengthen the
financial health of the NBFCs.

- Reeeding pandemic impact along with large vaccinated population, rising private investments,
higher consumption levels shall in turn lead to a higher growth trajectory for the economy. This
shall also translate into a better performance vis-a-vis the year gone by for most of the leading
financial services institutions including NBFCs.

Threats / Challenges
——  NBFGsplaya-—crucielrole-inproviding-aceesste-credit-for-individuals-and-businessesintndia:
However, o meet their financing requirements, NBFCs heavily rely on external funding sources
such as banks, mutual funds, and capital markets. Any disruptions in the availability of externa)
funding or a liquidity crunch due to reduced loan recovery, unforeseen events or market
volatility can significantly impact the NBFCs' loan disbursement cycle, leading to subdued
perfarmance.

- While the economy is on the path to recovery, there are certain headwinds that may impact the
growth and credit offtake. The Indian NBFC industry is vulnerable to global risks as the country
continues to emerge as a major player in the global economic platform. Changes in policies
and protectionism of developed and emerging countries, along with trade and capital market
conditions, may significantly impact businesses locally. Moreover, geopolitical and trade
tensions in the global market pose additional risks to the Indian NBFC sector, making it
imperative for companies to keep a close eye on global developments and adapt accordingly.

- In India, effective regulation and supervision of NBFCs are essential for sustainable growth of
the financial sector. The regulatory framework for non-bank lenders has evolved, with a focus
on ensuring responsible supervision and regulation. However, sudden, and unanticipated
regulatory changes or restrictions may lead to increased compliance costs and affect the
production or delivery of current products or services in the NBFC space. Therefore, regulatory
bodies must ensure that changes, if any, are well-communicated and implemented In a phased
manner to minimize the impact on the sector.

- The NBFC sector in India is experiencing a surge in technological advancements, Keeping up
with these developments is crucial for businesses to stay competitive. With new digital
innovations constantly emerging, NBFCs need to remain at the forefront of technology-based
innovation. However, as with any disruptive changs, there is always the potential for unforeseen
challenges and disruptions, that may arise from emerging technologies.

- Interms of threats, we believe that the impact of elevated interest rates on funding costs could
be visible and lead to slowdown of credit offtake as well as increase in credit costs.

- Growing competitive intensity from banking sector can also affect the growth of NBFCs like
ours.

Financial Performance:

With the objective of diversification of the Loan Book and to cater the MSME Sector, the Company has
explored new avenue and pursued Supply Chain Finance Business and Co-lending Business. Varicus
steps have been initiated inter alia end o end digitalization of Supply Chain Finance, hiring of personnel
to augment Supply Chain Vertical, etc;
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Your Company’'s balance sheet size at the end of FY 2022-2023 stood af Rs. 59,875.44 lakhs as
compared to Rs. 73,346.97 lakhs as at March 31, 2022. On the asset side, the Company's loan book,
which was at Rs. 45,510.31 lakhs as at March 31, 2022, has increased to Rs. 52,035.82 lakhs in as at
March 31, 2023.

For the FY 2022-2023, the revenues of the Company were Rs. 8,561.86 lakhs as compared to Rs.
14,375.86 lakhs for FY 2021-2022. The Profit after tax for FY 2022-2023 was Rs. 2,078.19 lakhs.

As on March 31, 2023, the Net worth of the Corhpany stood at Rs. 47,723.56 lakhs. The total
outstanding borrowing of the Company as on March 31, 2023 is Rs. 10,334.17 lakhs which includes

Term Loans from Banks of Rs. 6,864.34 lakhs and Working capital Facility from banks of Rs. 3,469.83
lakhs

As on March 31, 2023, the impairment loss allowance provision was of Rs. 6,159,62 lakhs (Previous
Year: Rs. 6,225.80 lakhs) as per Ind AS 109.

Operational Performance:

Your Company has adequate Capital to Risk-weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) due to its robust
capitalisation profile aided by low debt. The CRAR of the Company for the financial year ended on
March 31, 2023 is at 48.05%, which is above the limit prescribed by the RBI.

Risks:

The Comipany’s risk philosophy involves developing and maintaining a healthy portfolio within its risk
appetite and the regulatory framework. While it is exposed to various types of risks, the most important
among them are credit risk, market risk (which includes liquidity risk and price risk) and operational risk.
The measurement, monitoring and management of risks remains a key focus area of the Company.

Your Company's risk management strategy is based on a clear understanding of various risks,
disciplined risk assessment and measurement procedures and continuous monitoring. The policies and
procedures established for this purpose are continuously benchmarked against best practices in the
market.

The Board of Directors have an oversight on all the risks assumed by the Company. For credit risk,
distinct policies and processes are in place. Management of credit risk is carried out through credit
assessment, mitigation, etc; portfolio diversification, credit appraisal and approval processes, internal
ratings, post sanction monitoring, operations confrol, fraud control, collection processes and remedial
management procedures. For every product, underwriting standards, security structures, etc are
specified to ensure consistency of credit patterns. All the credit proposals are approved by the Credit
Committee of the Board or the delegation framework approved by the Board from time to time.

Internal Financial Control Systems and their adequacy:
Kindly refer Para 2 of the Boards’ Report

Human Resources:
Kindly refer Para 15 of the Boards’ Report

Outlook:

NBFCs have been playing a very important role from the macroeconomic perspective and as a core
catalyst in the Indian Financial System. NBFCs are certainly emerging as better alternatives to the
conventional banks for meeting the financial needs of various sectors. However, to survive and to
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constantly grow, NBFCs have to focus on their core strengths while improving on weaknesses. They
will have to be very dynamic and constantly endeavor to search for new products and services in order
to survive in this ever-competitive financial market.

The NBFC segment is a catalyst to the economic development of the country. The RBI is constantly
striving to bring necessary changes in the NBFC Regulatory space to proactively provide regulatory
support to the segment and also to ensure financial stability in the long run.

The outlook of the Company for the year ahead is to drive profitable growth across all products and to
improve its asset quality across its offerings. The Company as a whole, will focus on balanced measured
growth, asset quality and cross selling opportunities.

For and on behalf of the Board
Shapoorji Pallonji Finance Private Limited

Managing Director & CEO ecutive Director
DIN: 00388123 DIN: 02873571

Date: July 14, 2023
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Annexure B
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company recognizes its role as a Corporate Citizen and endeavors to adopt the best practices
and the highest standards of Corporate Governance through fransparency in business ethics,
accountability to its customers, Government and others. The activities of the Company are carried
out in accordance with good corporate practices and the Company is constantly striving to better
them by adopting best practices.

The Company believes that good Corporate Governance practices enables the Management to
direct and cantrol the affairs of the Company in an efficient manner and to achieve the goal of the
Company of maximizing the value for all of its stakeholders. The Company complies with the
applicable laws-including-the-corparate-and-disclosure-reguirements—under-the-Companies-Act;
2013, the RBI Master Directions on Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Company not
accepting public deposits, 2016, etc; in pursuit of corporate governance and follows a system
whereby all the Acts, Rules and Regulations applicable to the Company are identified and
compliance with such Acts, Rules and Regulations is monitored by dedicated staff on a regular
basis. The consolidated compliance certificate and compliance MIS based on the compliance status
received from the Functional Heads of the Company in respect of various laws, Rules and
Regulations applicable to the Company is placed before and reviewed by the Board and Audit
Committee on periodic basis. The Company has made adequate disclosures and adopted varlous
Policies like Policy on Related Party Transactions, Vigil Mechanism, CSR Policy and undertaken
various CSR Initiatives, etc. The same are available on the website of the Company and can be
accessed from hitps://www.shapoorjipalioniifinance.com/

The Board of Directors along with its Committees provides leadership and guidance to the
Company’s Management and directs, supervises and controls the activities of the Company. The
size of the Board commensurates with the size and business of the Company. At present, the Board
comprises 5 (five) Directors viz, Mr. Shapoorji Pallonji Mistry, Non-Executive Director, Mr.
Kuppuswamy Subramania, Non-Executive Director, Mr. Sanjay Hinduja, Managing Director and
CEO, Mr. Shankar Krishnan, Non-Executive Director and Mr. Vinod Bhandawat, Non-Executive
Director. None of the Directors are related inter-se. The Board of Directors duly met 6 (Six) times
during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 viz. April 29, 2022, June 30, 2022, August 25, 2022,
November 7, 2022, January 18, 2023 and March 13, 2023.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

Name of | Capacity DIN | No. of No. Remuneraticn in Rs. No. of
g| | Director | (Executive, Meetings of shares
. Non-Executive, other ‘ held in
N Chairman, Direc and
o. Promoter, . tor converti

nominee ships ble
Independent) 1 instrum
ents
held in
the
Compan
¥
Held Atten Salary and Sitt | Co
durin | ded other ing | mm
gthe | by the compensati | Fee | issi
tenur | Direct on on
e or
1 Mr. Non-Execufive 000 | 8 6 10 Nil Nil Nil Nil

Shapoor | Promoter 101

ji Pallonji | Director 14

Mistry

Director

since




April 4,

1094

AMr. Non-Executive 014 5 Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mahesh | Director 230

Tahilyan 84

i

Director

since

Februar

y 10,

2020

Mr. Non-Executive 000 11 Nil Nil Nil Nil

Kuppus Director 588

wamy. 35

Subram

ania

Director

since

June 29,

2009

#Mr. Jai Non-Executive 052 11 Nil Nil Nil NIl

Mavani Director 801

Director 91

since

March 2,

2016

Mr. Managing 003 1 97,712,514 | Nil Nil 10

Sanjay Director & CEQ | 881 ' equity

Hinduja 23 shares

Director of Rs.

since 10/-

March sach as

18, 2018 a
nominea
of
Shapoor
ii
Pallonji
And Co.
Pvt. Ltd.

~Mr. Non-Executive 033 18 Nik Nil Nil Nil

Shankar | Director 160

Krishnan 09

Director

since

January

18, 2023

@Mr. Non-Executive 028 6 Nil Nil Nil 10

Vinod Director 735 equity

Bhanda 71 shares

wat of Rs.

Director 10/-
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Notes- 1) The number of Dirsctorships mentioned are basis the last Disclosure received from the Director. 2) There is no designated Chairman of the Board.

3) The Company is a subsidiary of Shapooriji Pallonji And Co. Private Limited (SP). All the Directors are 8P Nominaas. Mr. Shapoor Pallon]i Mistry Is a Promoter

Non-Exgcutive Diractor and Mr. Sanjay Hinduja is Managing Diractor & CEO. 4) None of the Directors holds shares or convertlble instruments In the Company

excapt as spacified above.

#Mr. Jal Mavani ceased to be a Directer of the Company w.&.f. July 25, 2022,

@Mr. Vinod Bhandawat was appointed as a Director w.e f. August 25, 2022,

“Mr. Mahesh Tahilyani ceased to be a Director of the Company w.e.f. October 01, 2022.

~Mr, Shankar Krishnan was appointed as a Dlrector w.af. January 18, 2023.

Details of change in composition of the Board during the F.Y. 2022-23 and F.Y. 2021-22

Sl. Name of Director Capacity (i.e., Execufive, | Nature of change | Effective date
No. Non-Executive, Chairman, | (resignation,

Promoter, niemines,—appointment}

Independent)
1 Mr. Shankar Krishnan Non-Executive Director Appointment January 18, 2023
2 Mr. Mahesh Tahilyani Non-Executive Director Resignation October 01, 2022
3 Mr. Vinod Bhandawat Non-Executive Director Appointment August 25, 2022
4 Mr. Jai Mavani Non-Executive Director Resignation July 25, 2022

During FY 2021-22, there have been no change in the Board of Directors of the Company.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
The 28" Annual General Meeting of the Company was heid on September 30, 2023. Following are
the details:-

SI. | Type of Meeting (Annual/
Ne¢. | Extra-Ordinary)

01 28" Annual General Meeting

Date & Place Special  Resolutions
Passed

Approval for issuance of
Debt  Securities  on
Private Placement basis

during the F.Y. 2022-23

Seplember 30, 2023

Registered  office- 8F  Centre,
Courtyard 10B, 41/44, Minoo Desai
Marg, Colaba, Mumbai — 400 005,

DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013
There was no such instance during the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

DETAILS OF PENALTIES AND STRICTURES
There was no such instance during the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD AND THEIR COMPOSITION .

The Board has constituted varicus Committees with specific terms of reference to focus on specific
issues and ensure expedient resolution of diverse matters. These include the Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Risk Management Committee, Asset Liability
Management Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committes, IT Strategy Committee; etc.
The Composition of various committees along with their terms of reference are as under:-

A) Audit Committee
As on March 31, 2023, the Audit Committee (the Committee) comprises the following Directors of
the Company as its Members:-

Name Designation

Mr. Vinod Bhandawat

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Shankar Krishnan

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sanjay Hinduja

Managing Director & CEQ.




The terms of reference of the Committee includes the roles and responsibilities as envisaged under
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as specified by the Reserve Bank of India in its Master
Directions on Non-Banking Financial Company not accepting / holding Public Deposits infer alia
review of financial statements and auditors’ repott, approval and subsequent modification of related
party transaction, appointment / reappointment of Auditors, review of effectiveness of audit, etc;
During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the Committee met 5 (five) times i.e. on April 29,
2022, June 30, 2022, August 25, 2022, January 18, 2023 and March 13, 2023,

The number of Audit Committee Meetings attended by the Members during the year ended March
31, 2023 is as under:-

Name of the Member of Capacity No. of Meetings No. of
Director/ Committee Since | (Executive, Held Aftended Shares
Committee Non=Executive,—during held-inthe
Member Chairman, the Company
Promoter, tenure
hominee,
Independent)
Mr. Vinod 25/08/2022 Non-Executive 3 3 10 equity
Bhandawat® Director shares of
Rs. 10/-
eachas a
nominee of
Shapooriji
Pallonji
And Cao.
Pvt. Lid
Mr. Shankar 18/01/2023 Non-Executive 1 1 Nil
Krishnan® Director
Mr. Sanjay 16/03/2018 Managing 5 5 10 equity
Hinduja Director & CECQ shares of
Rs. 10/-
each as a
nomines of
Shapooriji
Pallonjt
And Co.
Pvt. Ltd
Mr. Mahesh 10/02/2020 Non-Executive 3 1 Nil
Tahilyani* Director
Mr. Jai 16/03/2018 Non-Executive 2 2 Nil
Mavani* Director

*Mr. Mahesh Tahilyani ceased to be a Director of the Company w.e.f. October 01, 2022.
“*Mr. Jai Mavani ceased to he. a Director of the Company w.e.f. July 25, 2022.

#Mr. Vinod Bhandawat was appointed as a Director w.e.f. August 25, 2022,

#NMr. Shankar Krishnan was appointed as a Director w.e.f. January 18, 2023,

B) Nomination & Remuneration Committee
As on March 31, 2023 the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (the Committee) comprised the
following Directors of the Company as its Members:-

Name Designation

Mr. Shapoorji Pallonji Mistry Non-Executive Director
Mr. Shankar Krishnan Non-Executive Director
Mr. Vinod Bhandawat Non-Executive Director
Mr. Sanjay Hinduja Managing Director & CEO.

The terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee are in accordance with the
RBI Guidelines inter alia includes ensuring fit and proper status of the existing / proposed Directors,
recommending the Fit & Proper Criteria Policy, overseeing Compensation Policy, etc. During the



financial year ended March 31, 2023, the Committee met 5 (five} times l.e. on April 29, 2022, August
25, 2022, November 07, 2022, January 18, 2023 and March 13, 2023,

The number of Committee Meetings attended by the Members during the year ended March 31,

2023 is as under:-

Name of the Member of Capacity No. of Meetings No. of Shares
Director/ Committee Since | {Executive, held in the
Committee Non-Executive, Company
Member Chairman, Held Attended by
Promoter, during the Director
nominee, the
Independent) tenure
Mr. Shapoorjl 18/06/2019 Non-Executive 5 5 Nil
Pallonji Mistry Director
Mr, Jai 16/03/2018 Nan-Executive 1 1 il
Mavani** Director
Mr. Sanjay 16/03/2018 Managing 5 5 10 equity
Hinduja$ Director & CEQ shares of Rs.
10/- sach as a
nominee of
Shapoarji
Pallonji And
Co. Pvt. Ltd
Mr. Shankar 13/03/2023 Non-Executive 1 1 Nil
Krishnan®* Director
Mr. Vinod 13/03/2023 Non-Executive 1 1 10 equity
Bhandawat® Director shares of Rs.
10/-eachas a
neminee of
Shapooriji
Patlonji And
Co. Pvt, Ltd

**Mr. Jai Mavani ceased to be a Director of the Company w.e.f. July 25, 2022,
#Mr. Vinod Bhandawat was appointed as a member of the Committee w.e f. March 13, 2023.

#\ir. Shankar Krishnan was appointed as a member of the Committee w.e.f. March 13, 2023,
$Mr. Sanjay Hinduja ceased to be member of the Committes w.e.f. April 5, 2023.

C) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

As on March 31, 2023, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board (CSR
Committee) comprised following Directors of the Company as its Members:-

Name

Designation

Mr. S. Kuppuswamy

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Shankar Krishnan

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Vinod Bhandawat

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sanjay Hinduja

Managing Director & CEO.

The terms of reference of the CSR Commitiee infer afia includes recommending the amount of CSR
expenditure, monitoring of CSR Policy, consideration and approval of Annual CSR Plan, monitoring
and implementation of CSR Projects / Programs etc. During the financial year ended March 31,

2023, the CSR Committee met twice i.e. on June 30, 2022 and February 16, 2023.

The number of Committee Meetings attended by the Members during the year ended March 31,

2023 is as under:-



Name of the Member of Capacity (i.e., No. of Meetings No. of
Director/ Committee Since | Executive/ Non- Shares
Committee Executive/ held in the
Member Chairman/ Company
Promoter Held Attended by
nominee/ during the Director
Independent} the
tenure
Mr. S. 16/03/2018 Non-Executive 2 2 Nil
Kuppuswamy Director
Mr. Jai 16/03/2018 Non-Executive 1 1 Nil
Mavani** Director
Mr. Sanjay 16/03/2018 Managing 2 2 10 equity
Hil"ldlljﬁ Director & CEQ. chares of
Rs. 10/~
eachas a
nominee of
Shapooiji
Palloniji
And Co.
Pvi, Lid
Mr. Shankar 18/01/2023 Non-Executive 1 1 Nil
Krishnan®* Director
Mr. Vinod 25/08/2022 Non-Executive 1 0 10 equity
Bhandawat* Director shares of
Rs. 10/-
each as a
nominee of
Shapoorji
Pallonji
And Co.
Pvt. Ltd

**Mr. Jai Mavani ceased to be a Director of the Company w.e.f. July 25, 2022,
#Mr. Vinod Bhandawat was appointed as a Director w.e.f. August 25, 2022
#Mr. Shankar Krishnan was appointed as a Director w.e.f. January 18, 2023.

D} Risk Management Committee

As on March 31, 2023, the Risk Management Committee comprised the following persons as its
members:-

Name Designation

Mr. 8. Kuppuswamy Non-Executive Director

Mr. Shankar Krishnan Nan-Executive Director

Mr. Vinod Bhandawat Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sanjay Hinduja Managing Director & CEQ
Ms. Dipti Advani Head — Credit

Mr. Pankaj Gupta Chief Financial Officer

iMs. Tripti Navani Director — Credit & Markets.

The terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee inter alia includes evaluation of the
Risk Management Systems, managing integrated risk at entity level, to put in place a progressive
Risk Management System, Policy and Strategy; etc; During the year under review, the Committee
met thrice I.e, on June 30, 2022, November 07, 2022 and March 13, 2023.

The number of Risk Management Committee (RMC) Meetings attended by the Members during the
year ended March 31, 2023 is as under:-



Name of the Member of Capacity {i.e., No. of Meetings No. of
Director/ Committee Since | Executive/ Non- Shares
Committee Executive/ held in the
Member Chairman/ Company
Promoter Held Attended by
nominee/ during the Director
Independent) the
tenure
Mr. 8. 16/03/2018 Non-Executive 3 3 Nil
Kuppuswanty Director
Me. Jai 16/03/2018 Non-Executive 1 1 Nil
Mavani** .| Director
Mr. Sanjay T16/03/2018 Managing 3 3 10 equity
Hinduja Director & CEQ shares of
Rs. 10/-
eachasa
nominee of
Shapootji
Pallonji
And Co.
Pvt. Lid
Mr. Shankar 18/01/2023 Non-Executive 1 1 Nil
Krishnan®* Director
Mr. Vinod 25/08/2022 Non-Executive 2 2 10 equity
Bhandawat® Director shares of
Rs. 10/
each as a
nominee of
Shapoorji
Pallonji
And Co.
Pvi. Ltd
Ms, Dipti 16/03/2018 Head — Credit 3 3 Nil
Advani
Mr. Pankaj 16/03/2018 CFO 3 3 Nil
Gupta
Ms. Tripti 22/10/2018 Director — Credit 3 3 Nil
Navanl & Markets

**Mr. Jai Mavani ceased to be a Director of the Company w.e.f. July 25, 2022.
#Mr. Vined Bhandawat was appointed as a Director w.e.f. August 25, 2022,
#Mr. Shankar Krishnan was appointed as a Director w.e.f. January 18, 2023.

E) Asset — Liability Management Commiitee
As on March 31, 2023, the Asset — Liability Management Committee comprised the following as its
members:-

Name Designation

Mr. S. Kuppuswamy Non-Executive Director

Mr. Shankar Krishnan Non-Executive Director

Mr. Vinod Bhandawat Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sanjay Hinduja Managing Director & CEO
Ms. Dipti Advani Head — Credit

Mr. Pankaj Gupta Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Tripti Navani Director — Credit & Markets.

The terms of reference of the Asset — Liability Management Committee {ALM Committee) infer alia
includes to formulate ALM Guidelines and review of ALM Reports and the mismaiches / gaps, if
any; to consider product pricing for advances basis desired maturity profile and mix of the
incremental assets and liabilities; to ensure liquidity and interest risk management in accordance



with the regulatory framework; etc. During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the Committee
met twice i.e. on August 25, 2022 and March 13, 2023.

The number of Asset-Liability Management Committee Meetings attended by the Members during
the vear ended March 31, 2023 is as under:-

Name of the Member of Capacity (i.e., No. of Meetings No. of
Director/ Committee Since | Executive/ Non- Shares
Committee Executive/ held in the
Member Chairman/ Company
Promoter Held Attended by
nominee/ during the Director
Independent) the
tenure
Mr. S. 16/03/2018 Non-Executive 2 2 Nil
Kuppuswamy Director
Mr. Jai 16/03/2018 Non-Executive 0 0 Nil
Mavani** Director
Mr. Shankar 18/01/2023 Non-Exsecutive - 1 1 Nil
Krishnan®* Director
Mr. Sanjay 16/03/2018 Managing 2 2 10 equity
Hinduja Director & CEOQ shares of
’ Rs. 10/-
eachasa
nominee of
Shapoorji
Pallonji
And Co.
Pvt, Ltd
Mr. Vinod 25/08/2022 Non-Executive o2 2 10 squity
Bhandawat* Director shares of
Rs. 10/-
eachasa
nominee of
Shapoorii
Pallonji
And Co,
Put. Ltd.
Ms, Dipti 16/03/2018 Head — Credit 2 2 Nil
Advani
Mr. Pankaj 16/03/2018 CFO 2 2 Nil
Gupta
Ms. Tripti 22/10/2018 Director — Credit 2 2 Nil
| Navani & Markets

**Mr. Jai Mavani ceased to be a Director of the Company w.e.f. July 25, 2022.
#Mr. Vinod Bhandawat was appointed as a Director w.e.f. August 25, 2022.
#Mr. Shankar Krishnan was appointed as a Director w.e.f. January 18, 2023.

F)IT Strategy Committee
As on March 31, 2023, the IT Strategy Committee comprised the following as its members:-

Name Designation

Mr. Shankar Krishnan . Non-Executive Director
Mr. Sanjay Hinduja Managing Director & CEQ
Mr. Vinod Bhandawat Non-Executive Director
Mr. Haresh Motwant Chief Technology Officer
Mr. Delzad Mirza SP Group -CISO.

Pursuant to the RBI Directions on IT Framework, the Board of Directors have also approved the IT Policy.
The terms of reference, roles and responsibilities of the IT Strategy Committee are as under:-



i} Te approve IT Strategy and policy documents and ensure that the management has put an
effective strategic planning process in place;

i) To ascertain that management has implemented processes and practices that ensure that the
IT delivers value to the business;

iii} To ensure IT Investments represent a balance of risks and benefits and that budgets are
acceptable;

iv) To monitor the method that management uses to determine the IT resources needed to
achieve strategic goals and provide high-level direction for sourcing and use of IT resources;

v) To ensure proper balance of IT investments for sustaining NBFC’s growth and becoming
aware about exposure towards IT risks and controls.

vi) To carry out review and amend the IT strategies in line with the corporate strategies, Board
Policy reviews, cybersecurity-arrangemenis-and-any-othermatierrelated-to1T-Geovernance-

vii} In respect of outsourced IT Operations the role and responsibilities as envisaged in the RBI
Master Directions on IT Framework dated June 08, 2017 and as amended from time to time.

viil} To approve procurement / obtaining of Digital Signature Certificates for the employees,
officers, etc of the Company.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the Committee met twice i.e. on September 22,
2022 and February 16, 2023. The number of Committee Meetings attended by the Members during
the year ended March 31, 2023 is as under:-

Name of the Member of Capacity No. of Meetings No. of
Director/ Committee Since | (Executive, Shares
Committee Non-Executive, held in the
Member Chairman, Company
Promoter, Held Attended by
neminee, during the Director
Independent) the
. tenure
Mr. Mahesh 10/02/2020 Non-Executive 1 0 Nil
Tahilyani* Director
Mr. Sanjay 26/06/2018 Managing 2 2 10 equity
Hinduja Director & CEQ shares of
Rs. 10/-
eachasa
nominee of
Shapoorji
Pallonji
And Co.
Pvt. iLtd
Mr. Haresh 14/10/2019 CTC 2 2 Nil
Motwani
Mr. Delzad 26/06/2018 SP Group — 2 2 Nil
Mirza CISO
Mr. Shankar 14/05/2019 Non-Executive 2 2 NIl
Krishnan™* Director
Mr. Vinod 25/08/2022 Non-Executive 2 0 10 equity
Bhandawat* Director shares of
Rs. 10
eachasa
nominee of
Shapooiii
Pallonji &
Co. Pvt.
Ltd.

*Mr, Mahesh Tahilyani ceased to be a Director of the Company w.e.f. October 01, 2022.
#Mr. Vinod Bhandawat was appointed as a Director w.e.f. August 25, 2022.
#Mr. Shankar Krishnan became member of the IT Strategy Committee w.e.f. May 14, 2019
and was appointed as a Director w.e.f. January 18, 2023.




Besides the aforesaid Committees, the Board of Directors of the Company has constituted
Committees comprising Board Members, Senior Management and Functional Heads for day to day
operations of the Company viz. Operating Committee, Credit Committee, Securities Committee, IT
Steering Committee, Grirevance Redressal Committee, etc.

For and on behalf of the Board
Shapooriji Pallonji Finance Private Limited

N\

Sanjay Hinduja
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 00388123 DIN: 02873571 ]

Date: July 14, 2023

Shapoorji Pallonji Finance Private Limited

Registered & Corporate Office — SP Centre, Courtyard 10B, 41/44 Minoo Desai Road, Colaba, Mumbai — 400005
Tel No.- +91 22 67490000 Fax No. +91 22 66338176 e-mail- spfinance@shapoorii.com

Website https://www.shapoorjipallonjifinance.com/

CIN:U65920MH1994PTC077480
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Annexure D

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION POLICY

PREAMBLE

Shapoorji Pallonji Finance Private Limited (“The Company” or “SPFPL") is registered with the Reserve
Bank of India (‘RBI'} as a Non — Banking Financial Company not accepting or holding deposits. As
stipulated by RBI, the Board of Directors of SPFPL (“Board”} has laid down this policy on Related Party
Transactions. This Policy has been framed in order to comply with the directions of the RBI along with
the effective compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. This Policy provides a
framework for governance and reporting of Related Party Transactions.

SPFPL is subsidiary of Shapoorji Pallonji And Co. Pvt. Ltd., the Holding Company of the Company and
the flagship Company of Shapooriji Pallonji Group. SPFPL is committed in conducting its business in
accordance with applicable laws, rules and reguiations with the highest standards of business ethics
and ethical conduct. Corporate Governance is about maximizing shareholders’ value on a sustainable
basis and ensuring faimess to all other stakeholder of the Company. During the course of business
operations of the Company, there are likely to be transactions between parties, who under various
regulations, particularly the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’) and Rules framed thereunder and the
Accounting Standards on Related Party Disclosures ('Indian Accounting Standard 24"} as notified fram
time to fime, will be considered 1o be transactions with Related Parties.

The Board, in order to ensure transparency, shareholder confidence and in adherence to the rules for
Related Party Transactions ("RPT") have adopted this Pclicy and procedures with respect to Related
Party Transactions of the Company.

PURPOSE

This Policy is framed as per the requirement of applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules framed
thereunder and RBI Guidelines issued in this regard and intend to ensure the proper approval and
reporting of transactions between the Company and its Related Parties.

Pursuant to the RBI Directions, Accounting Standards, eic; the Company is required to disclose,
transactions between the Company and Related Parties on periodic basis in the Financial Statements,
elc;

DEFINITIONS

1. “Act” means the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules framed thereunder including any
modifications, amendments, clarifications, circulars or re-enactments thereof from time to time.

2. “Arm’s length transactions” means transaction between two related parties that is conducted as
if they were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest,

3. “Associate” means an enterprise in which the Company has a significant influence, but which is
not a subsidiary company of the Company having such influence and includes a joint venture
company and the term “Associate Company” shall be interpreted accordingly. For the purpose of
this definition, “Significant Influence” means control of at least 20% (twenty percent) of total voting
power or control or participation in business decisions under an Agreement. "Joint Venture" means
a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint conirol of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement.

4. “Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company
constituted under the provisions of the RBI Guidelines issued in this regard and shall have the
similar meaning as defined under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable
to the Company.

5. “Board” means Board of Directors of the Company

6. "Key Managerial Personnel” means -

(a) the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;

Shapoaorji Pallonji Finance Private Limited

Registered & Corporate Office — SP Centre, Courtyard 10B, 41/44 Minoo Desai Road, Colaba, Mumbai — 400005
Tel No.- +91 22 67490000 Fax No. +91 22 66338176 s-mail- spfinance@shapoorji.com
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(b) the Company Secretary;

(c) the Whole - Time Director(s);

(d) the Chief Financial Officer;

(e) such other officer, not more than one level below the directors wha is in whole-time employmeni,

designated as Key managerial perscnnel by the Board; and

(f) such other officer as may be prescribed under Section 2(51) of the Act or Rules framed

thereunder.

“Material Related Party Transaction / Contract / Arrangement” means any one of the following

transactions with the Related Party which individually or taken together with previcus fransactions

during a financial year in the ordinary course of business, on arms' length basis and fulfilling the

criteria of threshold limit as specified respective transaction:-

a) sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials, directly or through appointment of agent -
amounting to 10% or more of the turnover of the company

b) selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying property of any kind; directly or through appointment

10.

11.

of agent - amounting to 10% or more of net worth of the company
¢} leasing of property of any kind- amounting to 10% or more of the turnover of the Company
d) availing or rendering of any services; - directly or through appointment of agent, amounting to
10% or more of the turnover of the company
e) such related party's appointment to any office or place of profit in the company, its subsidiary
campany or associate company - at a monthly remuneration exceeding Rs. 2,50,000/-;
f) underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives thereof, of the company -
Remuneration for underwriting exceeding 1% of the net worth; and
g) payments with respect to brand usage or royalty shall be considered material if the
transaction(s) to be entered into, exceed 2% of the annual turnover of the Company.
The Turnover or Net worth referred above shall be computed on the basis of the audited financial
statement of the preceding financial year.
“Ordinary course of business” for the purpose of this Policy will cover the business of the
Company and usual transactions, customs and practices of a business and would include activities
to be carried out incidental to or to facilitate the ordinary course of business of the Company and is
usual or customary to the Company and / or providing the necessary support (financial or otherwise)
to its Holding Company, Associate Company, Subsidiaries, Fellow Subsidiaries (subsidiary of the
Holding Company to which Company is also a subsidiary); Group Companies, Affiliates, etc,
“office or place of profit” means any office or place~
(i) where such office or place is held by a director, if the director holding it receives from the company
anything by way of remuneration over and above the remuneration to which he is entitled as
director, by way of salary, fee, commission, perquisites, any rent-free accommodation, or otherwise;
(i) where such office or place is held by an individual other than a director or by any firm, private
company or other body corporate, if the individual, firm,
private company or body corporate holding it receives from the company anything by way of
remuneration, salary, fee, commission, perquisites, any rent-free accommodation, or otherwise;
“Related Party Transaction” or “RPT” means any transaction between the Company on one side
and the Related Party of the Company on other side.
“Related Party” with reference to a company, means -
{a) a director or his Relative;
{b) a Key Managerial Personnel or his Relative;
{c) a firm, in which a Director, Manager or his Relative is a partner;
(d) a private company in which a Director or Manager or his relatives is a member or director;
(e) a public company in which a Director or Manager is a director and holds along with his relatives,
more than 2% of its paid-up share capital;
(f) any body corporate whose Board of Directors, managing director, or manager is accustomed to
act in accordance with the advice, directions or instructions of a Director or Manager unless the
advice, directions or instructions are given in a professional capacity;
{g) any person under whose advice, directions or instructions a Director or Manager is accustomed
to act unless the advice, directions or instructions are given in a professional capacity;
(h) Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Holding Company or his relative other than the
Independent Director;

Shapooiji Pallonji Finance Private Limited
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{i) any body corperate which is
1. aHolding, subsidiary or an asscciate Company of such Company
2. Asubsidiary of a holding company to which it is also a subsidiary; or
3. Aninvesting company or the venture of the company, which means a body corporate whose
investment in the company would result in the company becoming an asscciate company
of the body corporate;
{(j) any other person that may be prescribed under Saction 2(76) of the Act; and
(k) Related Party as per Indian Accounting Standard 24.
12. “Relative” means relative as defined under Section 2(77) of the Act and includes anyone who is
related to another in any of the following manner —
(a) they are members of a Hindu Undivided Family;
(b) they are husband and wife;
(c) father {including step-father);
{d) mother {including step-mother);

{e) son {including step-son);

(f) son’s wife;

{g) daughter;

{h) daughter’s husband;

(i} brother {including step-brother); and
{j) sister (including step-sister).

13. "Transaction” with a Related Party shall be construed to include any coniract or arrangement or
transaction, whether single or as a group of fransaction and for the purpose of applying thresholds
as specified in Section 188 of the Act and the relevant Rules it shall include previous transaction(s)
during the financial year with the said Related Party.

Approval process
Audit Committee

All Related Party Transactions which are in the ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis
must be referred to the Audit Committee for its prior approval and any subsequent modification of
Related Party Transaction shall also require the approval of the Audit Committee, The Audit Committee
shall consider all requisite factors while considering a related party transaction for its approval. To
review a Related Party Transaction, the Audit Committee will be provided with all relevant material
information of the Related Party Transaction, name of the Related Party, including the terms of the
transaction, the business purpose of the transaction, the benefits to the Company and to the Related
Party, nature and duration of the transaction and justification / rational for arms’ length and any other
relevarnt information. The Audit Committee may make omnibus approval for related party transactions
which are repetitive in nature subject to the following conditions:-

a) The Audit Committee shall satisfy itself on the need for omnibus approval and that such approval
is in the interest of the Company;

b} The omnibus approval shall contain the name of the related party(ies), nature and duration of the
transaction, maximum amount of transaction that can be entered into, justification / rational for arms’
length, if any, and such other conditions, as the Audit Committee may deem fit;

Provided that where the need for related party transaction cannot be foreseen and aforesaid details
are not available, Audit Committee may make omnibus approval for such transactions subject to
their value not exceeding INR 1 crore per transaction.

¢) Omnibus approval shall be valid for a period not exceeding 1 (One) Financial Year and shall require
fresh approval after the expiry of such Financial Year;

d) Omnibus approval shall not be made for transactions in respect of selling or disposing of the
undertaking of the Company.

g) The Audit commitiee shall review, the details of the RPTs entered into by the Company pursuant
to the omnibus approval given on a yearly basis.

Board of Directors
In case any Related Party Transactions are referred by the Audit Committes to the Board for its approval
due to the transaction being-
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() not in the ordinary course of business, or
(ii) not at an arm’s length price,

the Board will consider such factors as, nature of the transaction, material terms, the manner of
determining the pricing and the business rationale for entering such transaction, the thresholds, ete. On
such consideration, the Board may approve the transaction or may require such modifications to
transaction terms as it deems appropriate under the circumstances.

Shareholders
If a Related Party Transacticn is not in the ordinary course of business, and / or not at arm'’s length

price and exceeds certain thresholds prescribed under Section 188 of the Act and relevant rules, it
shall require shareholders’ approval.

Iv. Restrictions on Loans and Advances to Directors or Related Entities / Parties
For the purpesés of thie Stale Based Regllatiofis as prescribed By RBI, the following shall be’
considered as Related Entities or Parties in relation to the Company while providing Loans and
advances to aggregating Rs. 5 Crores or above —
i.  Directors of the Company or their Relatives.
ii. Firm in which above {Directors and / or their Relatives) are partner, manager, employee or
guarantor
ii.  Company in which above (Directors and / or their Relatives} are major shareholder {10%
or more/ Rs. & Crore paid-up capital), director, manager, employse or guarantor.
While granting loan to above Related Entities, eic; the following shall be ensured by the Company-

- Prior Approval of the Board/ Committee of the Board

— Interested Director shall disclose the nature of his / her interest to the Board.

— Interested Director should recuse himself / herself from the meeting unless his / her
presence is required by the other directors for the purpose of eliciting information and the
director so required to be present shall not vote on any such proposal.

However, while granting loan of less than Rs. 5 Crores to any of the above related entities, following
shall be ensured by the Company-

— Approval of the appropriate Authority

— Reporting to the Board

V. Restrictions on Loan to Senior Officer

Below conditions shall be fulfilled while providing Loans and advances of any amount to Senior
Officer (Personnel of the company who are members of its Core Management Team excluding
Board of Directors comprising all members of Management one level below the Executive
Directors, including the Functional Heads):-

—  Approval of the appropriate Authority
— Reporting to the Board

Provided that no senior ¢fficer or any Committee comprising, inter alia, a senior officer as member,
shall, while exercising powers of sanction of any credit facility, sanction any credit facility to a
relative of that senior officer. Such a facility shall be sanctioned by the next higher sanctioning
authority under the delegation of powers.

The granting of Loan(s) as referred in (IV) and (V) above to be in accordance with the Credit Policy
and Risk Management Policy of the Company..

IDENTIFICATION OF RELATED PARTIES
Every Director and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company is required and responsible to disclose
the details of any person or entity that would be regarded as Related Party in accordance with the
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provisions of the Act, Rules framed thereunder, Scale Based Regulations prescribed by RBI, RBI
Directions, Guidelines, Notifications, Circulars and this Policy. Such Disclosure shall include disclosure
of the Director, Key Managerial Personnel’s and his/ her relative’'s concern or interest in any company
or companies or bodies corporate, firms or such other association of individuals which shall include the
shareholding, directorship, membership, partnership, etc.

The list of Related Parties as envisaged in this Policy shall be prepared and reviewed at least on an
annual basis.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS NOT APPROVED PREVIOUSLY

In the event the Company becomes aware of a Related Party Transaction that has not been approved
or ratified under this Policy, the transaction shall be placed as promptly as practicable before the Audit
Committee or Board or the Shareholders as may be required in accordance with the provisions of
Section 188 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder
and this Policy and for review and ratification. The Audit Committee or the Board or the Shareholders
shall consider all relevant facts and circumstances in relation to such transaction and shall evaluate all
options available to the Company, including but not limited to ratification, revision, or termination of such
transaction, and the Company shall take such action as the Audit Committee or Board or the
Shareholders deems appropriate under the circumstances.

OUTSOURCING TO A RELATED PARTY

In case the Company decides to outsource or intends to outsource any of its financial activities and any
such other services to a related party, it shall do so in accordance with the Outsourcing Policy of the
Company framed in accordance with the RBI Directions applicable to the Company and the Directions
issued by RBI in this regard from time to time.

IMPLEMENTATION
This Policy is effective from the date as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

REVIEW
This Policy shall be reviewed by the Board / Audit Committee of the Company at least on an annual
basis.

DISCLOSURE

The Policy is made available on the website of the Company and a web link thereto shall be provided
in the Company's Annual Report. The Company shall disclose the Material Related Party Transaction
I Agreement / Contract, if any, in the Annual Report of the Company.

LIMITATION

In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Policy and of the Act or any other statutory
enactments, rules or regulations, thereof, the Act, Rules and such regulations shall prevail over this
Policy and any subsequent amendment to the applicable laws in this regard shall be automatically
applicable to this Policy.

For and on behalf of the Board
Shapoorji Pallonji Finance Private Limited

/'SanjayHin ja

: Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 00388123

Date: July 14, 2023
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Form Ne. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms
length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transact ions not at arm’s length basis — Not

- Applicablg———— ~ — — el
(@) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship — Not Applicable
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions — Not Applicable

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions — Not Applicable

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any — Not
Applicable

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions — Not Applicable
() date(s) of approval by the Board — Not Applicable
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: — Not Applicable

{(h} Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso
to section 188— Not Applicable

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s tength basis — Enclosed
as Annexure



AQOGC-2

Salient terms

of the

contracts or

arrangements | Date of

Duration of or approval
Nature of the transaction by the Amount
Name(s) of the related contracts/ contracts/ inciuding the | Board / paid as
party and nature of arrangements/ | arrangements/ | value, if any Audit advances,
relationship transactions transactions (Rs. in lakhs) | Committee | if any
Khvafar Property Developers
Private Limited Loan given to 6 MONTHS 3,000.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A,
Khvafar Property Developers
Private Limited Loan repaid by | 1 YEAR 2,500.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
Khvafar Property Developers
Private Limited Loan repaid by | 1 YEAR 1,800.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
| .Mirth Property Developers __ _ | | __ | T - T

Private Limited Loan repaid by | 1 YEAR 2,250.00 14-Feb-22 | NA,
Mirth Property Developers
Private Limited Loan repaid by | 1 YEAR 415.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A,
Bengal Shapoaorji Infrastructure
Development Private Limited Loan repaid by | 1 YEAR 2,500.00 14-Feh-22 | N.A.
Mileage Properties Private
Limited Loan given to 1YEAR 2,100.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A,
Mileage Properties Private
Limited Loan repaid by | 1 YEAR 3,600.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
Sagar Premi Builders &
Developers Private Limited Loan repaid by | 1 YEAR 3,500.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A,
Shapoorji Pallonji Logispace
and Investment Advisors
Private Limited Loan repaid by | 1 YEAR 5,100.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A,
Flamboyant Developers Private
Limited Loan given to 6 MONTHS 3,000.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
Flamboyant Developers Private
Limited Loan repaid by | 1 YEAR 2,500.00 14-Feb-22 | NA,
Blue Riband Properties Private
Limited Loan given to 6 MONTHS 3,000.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
Instant Karmaa Properties
Private Limited Loan given to 1 YEAR 400.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
Instant Karmaa Properties
Private Limited Loan given to 364 DAYS 300.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A,
Instant Karmaa Properties
Private Limited Loan given to 6 MONTHS 1,750.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
Kanpur River Management Pvt _
Ltd Loan given to 6 MONTHS 2,000.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
Kanpur River Management Pvt
Ltd Loan given to 3 MONTHS 500.00 14-Feb-22 | NA.
Shapaorji Pallonji & Co - Kipl Loan given to 3 MONTHS 2,500.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A,
Shapoorji Pallonji Energy
{Gujarat) Private Limited Loan given to 181 DAYS 2,661.18 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
Shapoor]i Pallonji Forbes
Shipping Pvt Lid Loan given to 6 MONTHS 3,000.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
Shapoorji Pallonji Infrastructure
Capital Co. Privte Limited Loan given to 181 DAYS 2,661.18 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
S. D. Corperation Private
Limited Loan given to 1 YEAR 600.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
S. D. Corporation Private
Limited Loan given to 1 YEAR 120.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A,
S. D, Cerporaticn Private
Limited Loan repaid by | 1 YEAR 1,380.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
S. D. Corporation Private
Limited Loan repaid by | 1 YEAR 120.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
Bigsearch Properties Private
Limited Loan given to 1 MONTH 1,885.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
Always Remember Properties
Private Limited Loan given to 1 YEAR 2,100.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A,




Always Remember Properties

Private Limited Loan repaid by | 1 YEAR 1,100.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
Ace Richesse (India) Private
Limited Loan given to 6 MONTHS 1,800.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
Ace Richesse (India) Private
Limited Loan given to 6 MONTHS 1,100.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A.
Ace Richesse (India) Private
Limited Loan repaid by | 1 YEAR 4,200.00 14-Feb-22 | N.A.

For and on behalf of the Board

Shapoorji Pallonji Finance Private Limited

N
b
Sanjay Hinduja Vinod Bhandawat

Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 00388123
Date: July 14, 2023

Non-Executjve Director

DIN: 02873571
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Practicing Company Secretary
Office: 161, 2™ floor, Raghuleela Mega Mall, Kandivali — (West), Mumbai - 400 067.
Tel: 022- 49638648/ Email: csmehulraval@gmail.com

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Form No. MR-3
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act. 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
S.P. Centre, Courtyard, 10B,

41/44 Minoo Desai Road,

Colaba, Mumbai — 400 005.

[ have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE
LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books. papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report
that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on
Marea 31, 2023 (“Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject 1o the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for tic financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder.

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(Not applicable to the Company during the period under Audit)

(iit) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
t7 the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External

Commercial Borrowings:

(v) Ihe follawing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act™):

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable to the Company during the period under Audit)




MEHUL RAVAL

Practicing Company Secretary
Office: 161, 2™ floor, Raghuleela Mega Mall, Kandivali - {West), Mumbai - 400 067.
Tel: 022- 49638648/ Email: csmehulraval@gmail.com

(g)

(h)

(i)

) The Sccurities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015:

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the period under Audit)

The Sceurities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the period under Audit)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Con /ertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the period under Audit)

'The Seeurities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to
the Company during the period under Audit)

Ihe Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
(Not applicable to the Company during the period under Audit)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not
applicabie to the Company during the period under Audit)
and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclo ure Requirements)
Reguiations, 2015 (Not applicable to the Company during the period under Audit)

Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

{1) The Reserve sank of India Act, 1934

(2) The Directions, Guidelines, Circulars, Notifications, etc issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
applicable to the Company.

(3) The Indian Contract Act, 1872

(4) The Depositories Act, 1996

(5) The Maharashtra Stamp Act, 1958

" (6) The indian Stamp Act, 1899

(7) SEB! (Substantial Acquisition of Shares And Takeovers) Regulations, 2011
(8) The indian Regiswation Act, 1908
Q)

(9)

J

Tha Inema tavy Act 108
(NC NcuMme 1dx ACL 1961

{(10) The Goods and Service Tax (GST)

{11) The Maharashira Profession Tax Act

(12) The Maharashtra Shops and Establishment act. 2017

{13) The Matcinity Benetit Act, 1961

(14) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

(15) The Emplovee Frovident Fund and Miscellaneous Act, 1952

{i6) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition And Redressal) Act,
2013

(.7) The (National & Festival Holidays) Act 1963
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Practicing Company Secretary
Office: 161, 2™ floor, Raghuleela Mega Mall, Kandivali - (West), Mumbai — 400 067.
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have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism
formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws, and Regulations of the
Company.

i have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

=

{ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges. (Not
applicable to the Company during the period under Audit)

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Acts,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above:

| further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
executive directors and non-executive directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions ol ihe Act.

Adequate notice was given to all the directors to schedule the board meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent in aavance. The Company confirms that the system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

\il decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in
fie minuics o1 e respective meetings of the Board or Committee thereof.

[ further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
scgulations and guidelines.

{ further report that during the audit period the Company had following events which had bearing on

the Compary’s atfairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards

A,

| The Company had made an application to the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for change in shareholding
aad contro! in accordance with the provisions of the RBI Master Directions in December 2021 for the
ranstiar of temaining stake of Investment Opportunities IV Pte. Ltd., Foreign Company (hereinafter
referred as INVO 1V) being 6,34,32,315 equity shares of the Company representing 21.875% of the
yaid up capital of the Company (said shares) to SMCM Holdings Private Limited (formerly known as
{armride Private Limited). RBI vide their letters dated April 1. 2022 and October 7, 2022, had given
approval for change in shareholding wherein the stake of SMCM Holdings Private Limited increased
from 25% to 46.875% and had given timeline till December 31, 2022. The remittance of consideration
‘or acquisition of said shares of the Company by SMCM Holdings Private Limited (SMCM Holdings)
from INVO 1V was made on December 30, 2022. The said transfer was effected by INVO IV to SMCM
foldings Private Lamited on January 03, 2023
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have received the explanation / representation from the Management of the Company that due to
whday on December 31, 2022 and January 1 & 2, 2023 in Singapore (home country of INVO V), the
transfer of said shares was effected on January 3. 2023.

) The Reseive Bank of india had conducted the on-site Inspection of the Company for FY 2021-22

rom March 4. 2023 1o March 28, 2023. The Inspection Report on the outcome of Inspection is
iwaited

Raval

Viehul

L 300

CP. No: 24170
UDIN: AGIB360E000489705
Place: Mumba

Dated: June 15,2023

"Uhis Report is o oe read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms
part oi this report.
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{he Memuoci

SHAPOORH PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
1v report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

“aintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

21 have foiowed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correciness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis
o ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. [ believe that the processes and practices,
i ollowed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

\ave not erified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts

i the company.

Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and reguiations and happening of events etc.

_The cospiiance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards
he responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on

tCSEL Dadbls

Ihe Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of
he eificacy or eifectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

chu: Raval

JSractiing
A ' QAN
D N\ A
Fro PO S5

Piace. Mumbai

v
o]
(=]
[\8)
(9%

Dated: June
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Shapoorji Pallonji
Finance Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flow for the year ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “the financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and its profits, total
Other Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards

on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

r priate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial
s/tage ents.

N N
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection

that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
elated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
na ement either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
istic alternative but to do so.
Page 2 of 16
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company's
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
-evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events

onditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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KHANDELWAL JAIN & CO. CONTINUATION SHEET

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect
of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure ‘A’, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept
by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account.

~+~(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with
ompanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015, as amended.
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KHANDELWAL JAIN & CO. CONTINUATION SHEET

FESRTER P RS BURTE P the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in Annexure ‘B’. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

(g) Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Company since the Company
is not a public company as defined under section 2(71) of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable; and

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

() The Company has does not have any of pending litigations which would
impact its financial position as at March 31, 2023 - Refer Note 48 to the
financial statements.

(i) The Company, as detailed in Note 25 to the financial statements, has
made provision as at March 31, 2023, as required under the applicable
law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts. Further, the Company did not have any derivative contracts
as at March 31, 2023 Refer Note 49 to the financial statements;

(i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the
year ended March 31, 2023 — Refer Note 50 to the financial statements.

(v} (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its

knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
) guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
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KHANDELWAL JAIN & CO. CONTINUATION SHEET

CHARTERED A3 PE Mdhagement has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances carried out by us, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under clause (iv) and (v) above
contain any material misstatements; and

(vy The company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the
year.

For KHANDELWAL JAIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registrat%on No. 105049W

<
<

(Bhupendra Karkhanis) 2
PARTNER

Membership No. 108336

Place: Mumbai

Date: 14 July 2023
UDITN .2313\0%33655@2-?!\46566
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6-B&C, Pil Court, 6th Floor, 12-B, Baldota Bhavan, 5th Floor,
111, M. Karve Road, Churchgate, 117, M. Karve Road, Churchgate,
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Tel.: (+91-22) 4311 5000 Tel.: (+91-22) 4311 6000
Fax : 4311 5050 Fax: 4311 6060

Annexure "A" to Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our Report to the Members of
Shapoorji Pallonji Finance Private Limited of even date)

(i)  (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of property, plant
and equipment and relevant details of right-of -use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars of intangible assets.

(b)  The Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets have been
physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification of the Property, Plant and
Equipment and right-of-use assets is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based
on the examination of the records of the Company, the title deed of an
immovable property is held in the name of the Company.

(d)  The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets during the year
and accordingly reporting under paragraph 3 (i)(d) of the order is not
applicable for the Company.

. .
on the examination of the records of the Company we report that, no
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The Company is non-banking financial company, primarily engaged in the
business of lending and does not have any inventory. Accordingly,
reporting under paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the said Order is not applicable for the

> M Company.
)
A/]
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(b) During the year, the Company has availed working capital limits from

(iii)

banks in excess of Rs. 5 Crore on the basis of security of current assets. On
the basis of audit procedures carried out by us we report that the quarterly
statements filed by the Company with banks were in agreement with the
books of account of the Company.

During the year, the Company has made investments and granted secured

and unsecured loans to companies and any other parties, in respect of
which:

(2) The Company has granted loans to companies during the year. As the
Company's principal business is to give loans, the reporting under
paragraph 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
the audit procedures performed by us, we are of the opinion that, the
investments made and terms and conditions of all loans granted during
the year are, prima facie not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of books of account and other records of the
company, we report that the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated in respect of loans granted by the
Company. We further report during the year that there have been delays
in many cases however due to nature of the Company's business, volume
of information involved and practicability, only the details of the
repayments or receipts which are due as at March 31, 2023:

Number of | Total Number of | Remarks
Parties Overdue Days
Overdue
11 Parties Rs.108.56 2 -196 Days Subsequently
crores Received ]

(d According to the information and explanations given to us and based-on

the audit procedures performed by us, as at March 31, 2023, following
amount is overdue including interest for more than ninety days:

Name of the Total Number of |Remarks
Borrower Overdue Days
Overdue

Highstreet 20,50,72,877/- 150

Developers Subsequently
Private Limited Received
Shree Radhey 4,71,39,726/- 196 Subsequently
Mangal  Gold Received
. hain Pvt Ltd
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crieyered hecdDomapmny's principal business is to give loans. Accordingly,

paragraph 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
the audit procedures performed by us, the Company has not granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year.
Hence, reporting under paragraph 3(iit)(f) is not applicable to the
Company.

(iv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
audit procedures performed by us, there are no loans granted, guarantees and
securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 of the Act are
applicable. The Company has not made investment through investment
companies. Other provisions of section 186 of the Act are not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

(v)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
audit procedures performed by us, the. Company has not accepted any
deposits or amounts which are deemed deposits from the public within the
meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there
under. According to the information and explanations given to us, no order
has been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law
Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal.

(vi)  The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the
business activities carried out by the Company. Thus, reporting under clause
3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues as applicable
to the appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by

us, there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues outstanding at the year- end for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on

the audit procedures performed by us, we report that there are no dues of

1. Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance,

s income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value

: ( Ml% - added tax, cess and any other statutory dues which have not been
2 . deposited on account of any dispute.

7
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(viil) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the

audit procedures performed by us, we report that there were no transactions
which were not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the

audit procedures performed by us, we report that the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
audit procedures performed by us, we report that the Company is not
declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not raised any term loans during the year.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and the
procedures performed by us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. .

() The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture and
accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

() The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture and
accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(x) () During the year, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial

public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).
Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures
performed by us, we report that the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(xi) (a) Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the
true and fair view of the Financial Statements and as per the information
and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the
Company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) During the year no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government.

(c) According to the information and explanations giver by us and procedures
performed by us, we report that no whistle-blower complaints were
received during the year by the Company.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of examination of books of account and records of the Company, we report
that the Company is not a Nidhi Company within the meaning of Section 406
of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xii)(a) to (c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Based on the audit procedures performed and as per the information and
explanations given to us, we report that the transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where
applicable and the details as required by the applicable Indian Accounting
Standards have been disclosed in the Financial Statements.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit have been
considered by us in determining the nature and extent of any audit
procedures.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
—rnredeWy—mmﬁr&ansacﬁmﬁwﬁh—anro%ﬂﬁe—dtmder% or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions section 192 of the

Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) Based on information and explanation given to us, the Company is
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and necessary registration has been obtained by the
Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company is having
valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India
as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
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(¢) In our opinion, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC)
as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 ("the Regulations") issued by the Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, in the Group,
there are seven companies forming part of the Group of the Company
which are Core Investment Companies (CICs), as defined in the
Regulations.

(xvii) Onthe basis of examination of books of account and records of the Company
and overall examination of the financial statements, we report that the
Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year 2022-23 or in the
immediately preceding financial year 2021-22.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company
during the year.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under section
(5) of section 135 in respect to 'other than ongoing projects' pertaining
to current financial year and accordingly reporting under paragraph
3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

0 acco™
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under section
(5) of section 135 in respect of any 'ongoing projects’ pertaining to
current financial year and immediately preceding financial year and
accordingly reporting under paragraph 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

For KHANDELWAL JAIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registr on No. 105049W

«

(Bhupendra Karkhanis) ( z
PARTNER

Membership No. 108336

Place: Mumbai

Date: 14 July 2023
UDIN:22108336BGAZFPMB266
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6-B&C, Pil Court, 6th Floor,

111, M. Karve Road, Churchgate,
Mumbai - 400 020.

Tel.: {+91-22) 4311 5000

Fax : 4311 5050
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Tel.: (+91-22) 4311 6000

Annexure B to Independent Auditer's Report Fax : 4311 6060

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading "Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements’ of our report to the Members of Shapoorji Pallonji
Finance Private Limited of even date)

Report on Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of Shapoorji Pallonji Finance Private Limited (the "Company") as of March 31,2023
in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
equate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was
lished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

cts.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
., ba.detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
%? eference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the

N
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internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

Inlour opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given o us, the
Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For KHANDELWAL JAIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 105049W

9
&

{ ( BA\\
(Bhupendra Karkhanis)
PARTNER %

Membership No. 108336

QAL
N\
/_/'

Place: Mumbai

Date: 14 July 2023
PUDIN: 23109226BGRZPMBE266
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SHAPQOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

Rupees in lakhs

. As at As at
Particulars Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 2,649.13 16,195.60
Receivables
(i) Other receivables 5 16.63 65.39
Loans 6 52,035.82 45,510.31
Investments 7 940.72 8,768.95
Other financial assets 8 44.56 36.38
Total financial assets 55,686.86 70,576.63
Non-financial Assets
Current tax assets (Net) 9 987.18 586.22
Deferred tax assets (Net) 10 1,726.55 1,635.23
Property, plant and equipment 11 738.78 142.16
Right of use asset 12 158.70 202.84
Intangible assets under development 11 373.91
Intangible assets 11 28.37 102.56
Other non-financial assets 13 175.09 101.33
Total non-financial assets 4,188.58 2,770.34
TOTAL ASSETS 59,875.44 73,346.97
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payables 14
(I)Trade payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 43.98 0.25
(iiyTotal outsFandmg dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 12415 52568
small enterprises
(Other payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
(ii)Total outs_tandlng dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 54.98 26.68
small enterprises
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 15 10,334.17 26,082.61
Other financial liabilities 16 169.03 208.03
Total financial liabilites 10,726.31 26,380.15
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 17 1,313.32 1,224.07
Other non-financial liabilities 18 112.25 91.18
Total non-financial liabilites 1,425.57 1,315.25
EQUITY
Equity share capital 19 28,897.63 28,997.63
Other equity 20 18,725.93 16,653.94
Total equity 47,723.56 45,651.57
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 59,875.44 73,346.97
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date.
For Khandelwal Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 10504SW

;$ ’“‘—\§ﬁﬁ

- @
Bhupendra Karkhanis 5
Partner NS
Membership No.108336 @\5\\
Place : Mumbai RED AG

Date - 14 July 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hinduja
MD & CEO
DIN. 00388123

7

Pan aj Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Place ; Mumbai
Date : 14 July 2023

N

Vino  handawat
D ector

IN. 02873571

Company Secretary
ACS No. 18180



SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

Rupees in lakhs

Year ended Year ended

Particulars Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Revenue from operations

interest Income 21 8,648.62 13,5676.56
Net gain on fair value changes 22 (88.69) 689.18
Total revenue from operations 8,559.93 14,265.74
Other income 23 1.93 10.12
Total income 8,561.86 14,275.86
Expenses

Finance costs 24 1,330.83 3,657.99
Impairment on financial instruments 25 (66.18) 1,234.79
Employee benefits expenses 26 3,081.11 2,201.81
Depreciation and amortization 11, 12 330.29 241,75
Other expenses 27 1,141.88 937.00
Total expenses 5,817.93 8,273.34
Profit before tax 2,743.93 6,002.52
Tax expense: 28

(1) Current tax 577.39 1,476.32
(2) Income tax of earlier years 177.57 321.26
(3) Deferred tax (89.22) 147.24
Total tax expense 665.74 1,944.82
Profit for the year 2,078.19 4,057.70

Other comprehensive income

(i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss -
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations

-Re-measurement of defined benefit plan (8.29) 11.54

(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit 209 (2.90)
or loss

Other comprehensive income (6.20) 8.64

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,071.99 4,066.34

Earnings per equity share 29

Basic (%) 0.72 1.40

Diluted () 0.72 1.40

Summary of Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date.
For Khandelwal Jain & Co. For and on behalif of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 105049W

v
a jay induja Vinod andawat
Bhupendra Karkhanis MD & CEO Dir or
Partner DIN. 00388123 02873571
Membership No.108336
Place : Mumbai ,
Date : 14 July 2023 - ‘
Pan aj Gupta P Chhabria
Chief Financial Officer mpany Secretary
Aqs No. 18180

Place : Mumbai
Date : 14 July 2023



SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

Rupees in lakhs

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Profit before tax: 2,743.93 6,002.52
Adjustments :

Depreciation and amortisation 330.29 241.75
Net loss on fair value changes 268.55 (503.74)
Gain on discontinuation of lease (1.88) -
Profit on sale of fixed assets - (6.19)
Profit on Redemption of Mutual Fund (179.86) (185.44)
Impairment on financial instruments (66.18) 1,259.99
Recovery from loan written off - (25.20)
Interest income (8,521.19) (13,504.43)
Finance cost 1,330.83 3,657.99
Cash inflow from interest on loans 8,582.98 13,281.70
Cash outflow towards finance cost (1,263.16) (3,819.11)
Operating profit before working capital changes 3,224.31 6,399.84
Adjustments for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets:

Other receivables 48.76 58.17
Loans (6,521.12) 22,879.78
Other financial assets (8.18) 4.79
Other non financial assets (73.76) 0.93
Adjustments for increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities

Trade payables 115.30 (141.08)
Other payables 18.30 (148.01)
Provisions 80.96 443.08
Other non financial liabilities 21.07 (37.64)
Cash generated from operations (3,094.36) 29,459.86
Less : income taxes paid (net of refunds) (1,155.92) {1,951.99)
Net cash outflow from operating activities {4,250.28) 27,507.87
CASH FL.OW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Sale of Investments 30,357.14 67,969.11
Purchase of Investments (22,617.61) (75,800.00)
Purchase of property, plant and equipments (747.56) (104.41)
Purchase of intangibles (373.91) -
Sale of fixed assets 6.19
Net cash inflow from investing activities 6,618.06 (7,929.11)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

(Repayment) of bank borrowing (15,796.03) (19,753.52)
Proceeds from/ (Repayment of) debt securities - (7,500.00)
Principal element of lease payments (118.22) {95.45)
Net cash inflow from financing activities (15,914.25) (27,348.97)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND BANK BALANCES (13,546.47) (7,770.21)
Add : Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 16,195.60 23,965.81
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 2,649.13 16,195.60

[




SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

Rupees in lakhs

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand
Balance with banks:
- In current accounts

- In fixed deposits (with original maturity of less than 3 months)

1,609.13 795.60
950.00 15,400.00
2,649.13 16,195.60

Refer to Note 15(c) which provides disclosure regarding changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

Summary of Significant accounting policies (Refer Note 2)
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date.
For Khandelwal Jain & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm RegistratiorUQ 105049W
\

Bhupendra Karkhanis

Partner

Membership No.108336

Place : Mumbai
Date : 14 July 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjay Hinduja
MD & CEO
DIN. 00388123

-~

Pankaj Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date : 14 July 2023

Vino ndawat
Dir or

N. 02873571

o

eti Cﬁhabria
ompany Secretary
CS No. 18180




A. Equity share capital

SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

Rupees in lakhs

Particulars Number Amount
As at 01 April 2021 28,99,76,296 28,997.63
Add: issued during the year -
As at 01 April 2022 28,99,76,296 28,997.63
Add: issued during the year -
As at 31 March 2023 28,99,76,296 28,997.63
, Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Special Reserve
Particulars Securities  |under section 45-IC of Retained Total other equity
premium the Reserve Bank of earnings
India Act, 1934
As at 01 April 2021 4,312.62 1,851.41 6,423.57 12,587.60
Profit for the year - 4,057.70 4,057.70
Other comprehensive income 8.64 8.64
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 4,066.34 4,066.34
Transfer to special reserve - (811.54) (811.54)
Additions 811.54 811.54
As at 31 March 2022 4,312.62 2,662.95 9,678.37 16,653.94
Profit for the year - - 2,078.19 2,078.19
Other comprehensive income (6.20) (6.20)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2,071.99 2,071.99
Transfer to special Reserve - (415.64) (416.64)
Additions 415.64 415.64
As at 31 March 2023 4,312.62 3,078.59 11,334.72 18,725.93

Summary of Significant accounting policies (Refer Note 2)
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For Khandelwal Jain & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 105049W —

\ I

Bhupendra Karkhanis ”
Partner
Membership No.108336

Place : Mumbai —_

Date 14 July 2023

nduja
MD & CEO
DIN. 00388123

s

Pank j Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date : 14 July 2023

A

d

Vino gh
Dire
DIN. 02873571

reett gbria

pany Secretary
S No. 18180



SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1.

241

2.2

23

24

25

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shapoorji Pallonji Finance Private Limited was incorporated in 1994 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 as a public
company and w.e.f. 31 March, 2016 it was converted into a private company. The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of
India (RBI) as Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company vide Certificate No. B-13.01534. The Company is primarily
engaged in Lending Business. The Company is a subsidiary of Shapooriji Pallonji And Company Private Limited.

The registered office of the Company is SP Centre, Ground Floor, Courtyard 10B, 41/44 Minoo Desai Marg, Colaba, Mumbai —
400005.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Presentation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule lll (Division lil) of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to
NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported on a
gross basis except when, there is an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being
contingent on a future event and the parties intend to settle on a net basis in the following circumstances:

i. The normal course of business

ii. The event of default

ii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements comply in all material aspects and have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind-AS) as per Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates (the "functional currency”). The values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise
indicated.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments and plan assets of defined benefit plans, which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period as
explained in the accounting policies below.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind-AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Ind-AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model
of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set outin Ind 115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates
enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to
transfer a goods or services to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one
performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the
amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when {(or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
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(i) Interest income

Under Ind-AS 109 interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial instruments
measured at amortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCH) (other than equity instruments measured
at FVOCI). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return
over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages,
and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments, penalty interest and charges), If expectations regarding
the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk. The adjustment is booked as a positive or
negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income as
modification gain/loss. The adjustment is subsequently amortised through interest income in the statement of profit and loss. The
Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-
impaired assets. When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3', the Company calculates
interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset but recognise as income on
receipt basis only.

(ii) Syndication fees income
Syndication fees are recognised on satisfactory completion of service delivery as per Ind AS 115.

(iii) Other income
Foreclosure/ penal income are recognised on a point-intime basis, and are recorded when realised since the probability of
collecting such monies is established when the customer pays.

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the taxable income of the current period based on the
applicable income tax rates adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
unused tax losses.

(i) Current Tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the company operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(ii) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws})
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or setile the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

LEASES

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement and
requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or
whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2018, the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain lease on the
basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

Company as lessee-

All leases are accounted for by recognising a right-of-use asset and a lease liability except for:
- Leases of low value assets; and

- Leases with a duration of 12 months or less.
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Lease liabilities are measured at the present value of the contractual payments due to the lessor over the lease term, with the
discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless (as is typically the case) this is not readily
determinable, in which case the Company’s incremental borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is used. Variable lease
payments are only included in the measurement of the lease liability if they depend on an index or rate. In such cases, the initial
measurement of the lease liability assumes the variable element will remain unchanged throughout the lease term. Other variable
lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also includes:

- amounts expected to be payable under any residual value guarantee;

- the exercise price of any purchase option granted in favour of the Company if it is reasonably certain to assess that option;

- any penalties payable for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease has been estimated on the basis of termination option
being exercised.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease incentives received, and
increased for:

- lease payments made at or before commencement of the lease;

- initial direct costs incurred; and

- the amount of any provision recognised where the Company is contractually required to dismantle, remove or restore the leased
asset.

Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabilities increase as a result of interest charged at a constant rate on the balance
outstanding and are reduced for lease payments made. Right-of-use assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
remaining term of the lease or over the remaining economic life of the asset if, rarely, this is judged to be shorter than the lease
term.

When the Company revises its estimate of the term of any lease, it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the
payments to make over the revised term, which are discounted using a revised discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities
is similarly revised when the variable element of future lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised, except the
discount rate remains unchanged. In both cases an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use asset,
with the revised carrying amount being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset is adjusted-to-zero;any-further-reduction-is-recognised-in-statement-of-profitand-los -

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

(i) Date of recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, debt securities, deposits and borrowings are initial'y recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular
way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customer’s account. The
Company recoegnises debt securities, deposits and borrowings when funds reach the Company.

(ii) Initial measurement of financial instruments

Recognised financiai instruments are initially measured at transaction price, which equates fair value.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised
immediately in statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Day of gain and loss

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair value is based on a valuation
technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction
price and fair value in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the
inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in
profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

(iv) Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset's
contractual terms, measured at either:

« Amortised cost,

» Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI),

« Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and financial guarantees, are measured at FVTPL when they are derivative
instruments or the fair value designation is applied.
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Financial assets

Based on the business model, the contractual characteristics of the financial assets and specific elections where appropriate, the
Company classifies and measures financial assets in the following categories:

- Amortised cost

- Fair value through other comprehensive income ('FVOCY)

- Fair value through profit and loss (‘FVTPL’)

(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows (‘Asset held to collect
contractual cash flows’); and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest ('SPPI’) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement and based on the assessment of the business model as asset held to collect contractual cash flows and
SPPI, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate (‘EIR') method. Interest
income and impairment expenses are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the EIR method. Any gain and loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and
loss.

The EIR method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest over the relevant
period. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the EIR, fransaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

{b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
assets, (‘Contractual cash flows of assets collected through hold and sell model') and contractual cash flows that are SPPI, are
subsequently measured at FVOCL Movements in the carrying amount of such_financial_assets_are recognised in Qther

Comprehensive Income {'OCI’), except dividend income which is recognised in statement of profit and loss. Amounts recorded in
OCI are not subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an
impairment assessment.

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets, which do not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, are measured at FVTPL.
Subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in statement of profit and loss. The company records investments in equity
instruments, mutual funds and Treasury bills at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities and equity instrument

Debt and equity instruments issued by the company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(a) Equity instrument
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

(b) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amounts are determined based on the EIR method. interest
expense is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of financial liabilities is also
recognised in profit or loss. Undrawn loan commitments are not recorded in the balance sheet.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

a) Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when:

- The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and the Company has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

¥
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If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the fransferred assets are not de-recognised and the proceeds
received are recognised as a collateralised borrowing.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to
the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received {including any new asset obtained less any
new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OC! is recognised in statement of profit and
loss.

b) Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, canceled or expires. Where an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in
profit or loss.

2.11 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSET

(i) Overview of the ECL principles

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost
and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset, unless there has been no significant
increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months' expected credit loss (12 month
ECL). The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial
instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring
over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Based on the above process, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described below:

Stage 1 includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since Initial recognition and are not
credit-impaired upon origination. For these assets, 12- month expected credit losses ('ECL') are recognised and interest revenue
is calculated on the gross carrying amount of the asset (that is, without deduction for credit allowance).

Stage-2-includes—financial-instruments-that-have-had-a-significant-increase—in-creditrisk-since-initial-recognition-but that _onot
have objective evidence of impairment. For these assets, lifetime ECL are recognised, but interest revenue is continued to be

calculated on the gross carrying amount of the asset.

Stage 3 includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. For these assets, lifetime ECL

are recognised and interest revenue is calculated on the net carrying amount.

(ii) The calculation of ECLs

The Company calculates ECLs based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an
approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive. The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the
key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default (PD): The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation, either over the
next 12 months (12M PD), or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

Exposure at Default (EAD) is based on the amounts the Company expects to be owed at the time of default, over the next 12
months (12M EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime EAD).

Loss Given Default (LGD) represents the Company’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by
type of counter party, type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other credit support. LGD is expressed as a
percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of default (EAD). LGD is calculated on a 12-month or lifetime basis, where 12-
month LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made if the default occurs in the next 12 months and lifetime LGD is the
percentage of loss expected to be made it the default occurs over the remaining expected lifetime of the loan.

When estimating the ECLs, the Company considers three scenarios (a base case, an upside, and extreme downside). Each of
these is associated with different PDs, EADs and LGDs. When relevant, the assessment of multiple scenarios also incorporates
how defaulted loans are expected to be recovered, including the probability that the loans will cure and the value of collateral or the
amount that might be received for selling the asset. Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately
from modification losses or gains that are accounted for as an adjustment of the financial asset's gross carrying value.

212 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE

The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date in the principle market or in absence of the principle market, the most advantageous market.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. In order to
show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as
summarised below:
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Level 1 includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds and
mutual funds that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.,

Level 2 Financial instruments the fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The
Company evaluates the leveling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and reclassifies instruments when
necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at
call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment ("PPE") are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost
of PPE comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended
use and other incidental expenses. Subsequent expenditure on PPE after its purchase is capitalized only if it is probable that the
future economic benefits will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to write down the cost of property and equipment to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives as specified under schedule || of the Act. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives are, as follows:

(i) Computer Equipments - 3 Years

(ii) Office equipment - 5 years

(iii) Furniture and fixtures - 3 years

(iv) Vehicle- 4 Years

(v) Building - 60 Years

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date on which such asset is ready for its intended use. The residual values,
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useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

PPE is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is recognised in other income / expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSET

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. in
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market {ransactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices
for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets represents computer software acquired by the Company carried at cost of acquisition less amortisation. The cost
of the item of Intangible assets comprises its purchase price, including non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at
the purchase price. Other Indirect Expenses incurred relating to asset under developement, net of income earned during the asset
development stage prior to its intended use, are disclosed under intangible Assets Under Development and are capitalised when
asset is ready for the intended use.

At intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economics benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset is recognised in profit or less when the asset is de-recognised.

Amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Intangible assets, comprising software, are amortised over the estimated life of 3 years on a straight-line basis from the date of
capitalisation. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

'




SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2.17 RETIREMENT AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined contribution plans

The Company's contribution to provident fund are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense based
on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefits plan

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five years of service with the Company at the time of
resignation / retirement. The gratuity is paid @15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972. The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit
Method and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees’ services. As per Ind AS 19,
the service cost and the net interest cost are charged to the statement of profit and loss. Remeasurement of the net defined
benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset
ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised in OCI.

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits.
Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the employee
renders the related service. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid when there is a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:

(a) In case of accumulative compensated absences, the employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued
compensated absences and utilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation. Since the compensated absences fall
due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service and are also
expected to be utilised wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a short-term employee
benefit.

{b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

2,18 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and it is
robable that an outflow of resources-embodying-economic benefits will be required to-settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of
losses, the Company takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence
from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.

219 SEGMENT REPORTING
The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non Banking Finance Company engaged in the business of
lending. During the current year and previous year the Company was engaged in only one business segment (corporate and other
financing) and primarily in one geographical segment. Therefore these financial statements pertain to one business segment.

2.20 EARING PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
* the profit attributable to owners of the Company
* by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
« the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
» the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

2.21 EXPENSES
(i) Finance costs:
Borrowing costs on financial liabilities are recognised using the EIR method.

(ii) Other expenses:
Expenses are recognised on accrual basis net of the goods and services tax, except where credit for the input tax is not statutorily
permitted.

2,22 Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 01, 2022, as below:

1. Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework
The amendments specifiy that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the
acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the -
ndment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. -
%AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

|



SHAPOORJ!I PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2.23

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from
selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales
proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of
its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

3.Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour,
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and
the Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

4, Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to
derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
statements.

5. Ind AS 106 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)
The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any

potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were described in
that illustration. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
ROUNDING OFF

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest “lakhs” as per the requirement of
Schedule Il}, unless otherwise stated.




SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates and assumptions
considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses
during the year. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised prospectively.

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
occur.

Following are the areas that involved a higher degree of estimates and judgement or complexity in determining the carrying
amount of some assets and liabilities.

i} Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous in absence of principal market) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of
valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values.

ii) Effective interest rate ("EIR") method
The Company's EIR methodology, as explained in Note 2.5 (i), recognises interest income using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioral life of loans given and recognises the
effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including
prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behavior and life-cycle of the
instruments, as well as expected changes to interest rates and other fee income that are integral parts of the instrument.

ili) Impairment of financial asset
The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can
result in different levels of allowances.

The Company's expected credit loss ("ECL") calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying

assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are

considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

a) The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial
assets should be measured on a life time expected credit loss ("LTECL") basis.

b) Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs.

c) Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and economic inputs, such as gross domestic products,
lending interest rates and collateral values, and the effect on probability of default ("PD"), exposure at default ("EAD") and
loss given default ("LGD").

d) Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs into
ECL models.

iv) Provisions and other contingent liabilities

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of litigation risk
inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and regulatory investigations and
proceedings in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers such
outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where the probability of outflow is considered to
be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed. Given the subjectivity and
uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes into account a number of factors including
legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgment is required to conclude
on these estimates.
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SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 4 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Cash on hand
Balance with banks

Particulars

31 March 2023

- In current accounts 1,699.13 795.60
- In fixed deposits (with original maturity of less than 3 months) 950.00 15,400.00
Total 2,649.13 16,195.60
Note 5 - Other Receivables
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Other receivables 16.63 65.39
Total 16.63 65.39
Secured - Considered good -
Unsecured - Considered good 16.63 65.39
Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk - -
Receivables - credit impaired - -
Total - Gross 16.63 65.39
(Less): Impairment loss allowance - -
Total - Net 16.63 65.39
Note 6 - Loans

As at As at

31 March 2022

Loans at amortised cost

== | Grand total - Net [(C) + (D}]

Loans 58,127.94 51,676.11
Loans to staff 67.50 60.00
Total (A) - Gross 58,195.44 51,736.11
(Less): Impairment loss allowance (6,159.62) (6,225.80)
Total (A) - Net 52,035.82 45,510.31
Secured by tangible assets 10,044.94 5,324.85
Secured by intangible assets - -
Covered by bank/government guarantees
Unsecured 48,150.60 46,411.26
Total (B) - Gross 58,195.44 51,736.11
(Less): Impairment loss allowance (6,159.62) (6,225.80)
Total (B) - Net 52,035.82 45,510.31
Loans in India
- Public sector
- Others 58,195.44 51,736.11
Loans within India - Gross 58,195.44 51,736.11
(Less): Impairment loss allowance (6,159.62) (6,225.80)
Loans within India -Net - (C)(i) 52,035.82 45,510.31
Loans Outside India (C) (ii) - -
Total (C) - Gross 58,195.44 51,736.11
(Less): Impairment loss allowance (6,159.62) {6,225.80
Total (C) - Net 52,035.82 45,510.31
Grand total - Gross [(A) + (D)] 58,195.44 51,736.11
52,035.82 45,510.31

;

/ in] iy with any other person.

T—hg company has not granted any loans and advances that are repayable on demand or without
if‘}yé'\terms or period of repayment to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties eithe

(
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SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 7 - Investments

. At fair value

Particulars At amortised through profit Total
cost
and loss

As at 31 March 2023
Investment in Mutual funds 517.60 517.60
Investment in Equity Shares 423.12 423.12
Total (A) - Gross - 940.72 940.72
Less: Allowance for impairment loss
Total (A) - Net - 940.72 940.72
Investments outside India -
Investments in India 940.72 940.72
Total (B) - Gross - 940.72 940.72
Less: Allowance for impairment loss - -
Total (B) - Net - 940.72 940.72
As at 31 March 2022
Investment in Mutual funds 8,070.96 8,070.96
Investment in Equity Shares 697.99 697.99
Total (A) - Gross - 8,768.95 8,768.95
Less: Allowance for impairment loss -
Total (A) - Net - 8,768.95 8,768.95
Investments outside India - -
Investments in India - 8,768.95 8,768.95
Total (B) - Gross - 8,768.95 8,768.95
Less: Allowance for impairment loss -
Total (B) - Net - 8,768.95 8,768.95
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SHAPOORUJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 8 - Other Financial Assets

Particulars

31 March 2023

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Security deposits 44 .56 36.38
Others - -
Total 44,56 36.38
Note 9 - Current tax assets (net)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance Tax and Tax deducted at source 6,105.33 4,949.41
Less: Provision for tax (5,118.15) (4,363.19)
Total 987.18 586.22
Note 10 - Deferred tax assets (net)

As at As at

31 March 2022

Deferred Tax Assets (Gross)

Differences in WDV of fixed assets 57.10 39.24
Unamortised Processing fees Income 86.69 71.14
ECL provision on financial assets 1,550.38 1,567.03
Modification loss on bank borrowing 10.73 41.42
Lease accounting as per [nd AS 116 2.60 1.31
Provision for Gratuity 62.52 47 .48
Interest adjustments on Lease deposits 1.63 2.16
Provision for leave encashment 7.78 4.64
TOTAL {A) 1,779.43 1,774.41
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Gross)

Unamortised fees on borrowings 9.00 27.71
Unrealized gain on investment at FVTPL 43.88 111.47
TOTAL (B) 52.88 139.18
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) [(A) - (B)] 1,726.55 1,635.23
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SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 13 - Other Non financial Assets

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Prepaid expenses 151.81 98.69
Duties and taxes 23.28 2.64
Total 175.09 101.33
Note 14 - Payables
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Trade Payables

a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 43.98 0.25
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 124.15 52.58
168.13 52.83
Other payables
a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 54.98 36.68
54.98 36.68
Total 223.11 89.51
Trade Payables Ageing
As at 31 March 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Unbilled Not due Less than 6( 6 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months months- years
1 year
(i) Undisputed Trade
receivables
Micro enterprises
and small - - 43.98 - - 43.98
Others 33.80 90.35 124.15
(iii) Disputed Trade
Receivables
Micro enterprises
and small
Others
Total 33.80 - 134.33 - - - 168.13
As at 31 March 2022
Particulars QOutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Unbilled Not due Less than 6| 6 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months months- years
1 year
(i) Undisputed Trade
receivables
Micro enterprises - - 0.25 - - - 0.25
and small
Others 39.48 - 13.10 - - 52.58
(iii) Disputed Trade
Receivables
Micro enterprises - - - - - -
and small
Others - - - R -
Total 39.48 - 13.35 - -




SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 15 - Borrowings other than debt securities (at amortised cost)

Tenure (from the date of the Balance Sheet)

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Rate of Interest

Rate of Interest

>=9.90% >=8.85%

<10.30% <12.25%

Amount Amount
24-36 months - 2,249.34
12-24 months 2,258.03 6,659.36
upto 12 months 4,606.31 9,732.51
Total 6,864.34 18,641.21

ii) Nature of security provided towards the above loan:

Particulars As at As at
31March 2023 | 31 March 2022

Secured

Term loans 6,864.34 18,641.21
Working Capital Demand Loans -

Bank Overdrafts 3,469.83 7,441.40
Total (A) 10,334.17 26,082.61
Borrowings in India 10,334.17 26,082.61
Borrowings outside India

Total (B) 10,334.17 26,082.61
a) Term loan

i) Terms of repayment:

As at As at

Term loan facilities are secured via First pari-passu floating charge by way of hypothecation on the standard asset portfolio of receivables and

investments.

b} Bank overdraft and working capitat demand loan:

Bank overdraft and working capital demand loan are repayable on demand and are secured by way of hypothecation of standard asset portfolio of

receivable and investments.

c) Net debt reconciliation

Analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods is presented as follows:

Particulars Net debt as at | Net Cash Flows | Other non cash| Net debt as at
April 01, 2021 movement March 31, 2022
Debt securities 7,612.95 (7,500.00) (112.95)
Borrowings other than debt securities 45,896.81 (19,753.52) (60.68) 26,082.61
Lease liabilities 39.17 (95.45) 264.31 208.03
Total 45,935.98 (27,348.97) 90.68 26,290.64
Particulars Net debt as at | Net Cash Flows | Other non cash| Net debt as at
April 01, 2022 movement March 31, 2023
Debt securities - - B
Borrowings other than debt securities 26,082.61 (15,796.03) 47.59 10,334.17
Lease liabilities 208.03 (118.22) 79.22 169.03
Total 26,290.64 (15,914.25) 126.81 10,503.20

The Company has not defaulted/delayed in repayment of any principal and interest during the year.
The quarterly returns and statements of current assets filled by the company with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.
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Note 16 - Other financial liabilities

Particulars

31 March 2023

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Lease liability 169.03 208.03
Total 169.03 208.03
Note 17 - Provisions
As at As at

31 March 2022

Provisions for employee benefits

Gratuity (Refer note 31) 248.41 188.64
Variable Pay 1,034.00 1,017.00
Leave Encashment 30.91 18.43
Total 1,313.32 1,224.07
Note 18 - Other non financial liabilities
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Statutory dues payable 112.25 91.18
Total 112.25 91.18
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b)

Note 19 - Equity

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Particul
articulars Number Rs. Number Rs.
Authorised shares
700,000,000 (Previous year : 700,000,000) Equity 70.00.00 000 20.000.00 70.00.00.000 20.000.00
shares of Rs.10 each e ' ’ AR AR
Issued, subscribed & fully paid-up shares
289,976,296 (March 31, 2022: 289,976,296 )

7 I ! 7 ! , 7 , .
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 28,09,76,296 28,997.63 28,99,76,296 28,997.63
Total 28,99,76,296 28,997.63 28,99,76,296 28,997.63

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at

the end of the year.

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Number Rs. Number Rs.
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 28,99,76,296 28,997.63 28,99,76,296 28,997.63
Add: Shares issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year 28,99,76,296 28,997.63 28,99,76,296 28,997.63

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

Equity shares: The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per shares. Each shareholder is
eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining
assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

c) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

d)

Name of shareholder

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Number | % of Holding Number | % of Holding
Shapporjl Pallonji and Ccl)mpany' Private Limited 15,40,25,907 53.12 15,40.25.907 53.12
(Holding Company) and its nominees
SMCM Hold.|ngs Prlvgte Limited (formerly known as 13.50 26,389 46.88 7.04.94.074 25.00
Farmride Private Limited)
Investment Opportunities 1V Pte. Limited* 6,34,32,315 21.88

* The remittance of consideration for acquisition of 6,34,32,315 equity shares of the Company (representing 21.88% of the
paid-up equity share capital of the Company) by SMCM Holdings Pvt. Ltd. (SMCM) from Investment Opportunities 1V Pte.
Ltd. (INVO IV) was made on December 30, 2022. Due to holiday on December 31, 2022, January 01, 2023 and January 02,
2023 in Singapore (home Country of INVO (V) the said transfer was effected by INVO IV to SMCM on January 03, 2023

Details of shareholding of promoters

Name of shareholder Number | % of Holding | % Change during the year
Shapgorjl Pallonji and Cgmpany Private Limited 15.40,25,.907 5312 Nil

(Holding Company) and its nominees

SMCM Holdings Private Limited (formerly known as 13,59,26,389 46.88 21.88

Farmride Private Limited)
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Note 20 - Other equity

Particulars

31 March 2023

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Securities premium account 4,312.62 4,312.62
Retained earnings 11,334.72 9,678.37
Special Reserve under section 45 1C of RBI Act, 1934 3,078.59 2,662.95
TOTAL 18,725.93 16,653.94
As at As at

31 March 2022

Securities premium account

Opening balance 4,312.62 4,312.62
Add- Received during the year - -
Add- Share issue expenses - -
Closing balance 4,312.62 4,312.62
Retained earnings

Opening balance 9,678.37 6,423.57
Add: Profit for the year 2,078.19 4,057.70
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year (6.20) 8.64
Less: Transfer to Special Reserve under section 45 IC of RBI Act, (415.64) (811.54)
1934

Closing balance 11,334.72 9,678.37
Special Reserve under section 45 IC of RBI Act, 1934

Opening balance 2,662.95 1,851.41
Add: Transfer from profit for the year 415.64 811.54
Closing balance 3,078.59 2,662.95
Total 18,725.93 16,653.94

Nature and purpose of the reserve

a) Securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised
only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013.

b) Special Reserve under section 45 |C of RBI Act, 1934

Special reserve is created as per the requirement of RBI at the rate of 20% of the profit after tax for the

year.

I
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Note 21 - Interest income

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

On financial assets measured at amortised costs:

Interest on loans (Refer note 1 below) 8,521.19 13,504.43
Interest on fixed deposits 123.57 68.62
Interest others 3.86 3.51
Total 8,648.62 13,576.56

Note 1- The Company's significant revenue-interest on loans of 79.68% (previous year 35.95%) is derived from
a group of entities under common control, interest on loans from such entities amounted to Rs. 6,789.38 lakhs
{Rs. 4,855.38 lakhs). No other single customer contributed 10% or more to the Company's revenue for FY

2022-23 and FY 2021-22.

Note 22 - Net gain / (loss) on fair value changes

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

Net gain /(loss) on financial instruments at FVTPL

Particulars

(Loss)/ gain on FVTPL instruments (88.69) 689.18
Total (A) (88.69) 689.18
Fair Value changes:

Realised 179.86 185.44
Unrealised (268.55) 503.74
Total (B) (88.69) 689.18
Note 23 - Other income

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Profit on sale of Property, plant and equipment - 6.19
Gain on discontinuation of lease 1.88
Others 0.05 3.93
Total 1.93 10.12
Note 24 - Finance costs
Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest on borrowings 1,188.38 3,375.33
Interest expenses on lease liability 20.08 12.51
Other finance cost 122.37 270.15
Total 1,330.83 3,657.99

ﬁ
(
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Note 25 - impairment on financial instruments

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

On financial instruments measured at amortised cost:

Provision for expected credit loss (66.18) (31.29)
Financials assets written off* 1,266.08
Total (66.18) 1,234.79
* net of recovery of Rs. Nil (Previous year: Rs. 25.20 lakhs)
Note 26 - Employee benefit expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries 2,914.57 2,076.18
Contribution to provident fund 39.55 34.09
Compensated absences 12.48 2.23
Staff welfare expenses 63.02 38.47
Gratuity Expense (Refer Note 31) 51.49 50.84
Total 3,081.11 2,201.81
Note 27 - Other expenses
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Legal and professional fees 497.79 461.81
Rates & Taxes 13.94 18.91
Business development expenses 30.27 56.44
Lease rent 12.65 6.63
Office and administrative expenses 104.31 42.73
Travelling and conveyance 148.45 94.73
Payments to auditors 37.00 28.00
Communication expenses 10.30 10.97
Printing and stationery expenses 5.23 2.01
Membership & Subscription 55.40 24.90
Donation 0.50 11.74
Corporate social responsibility expenses (Refer note 34) 172.18 141.67
Insurance expenses 53.86 36.46
Total 1,141.88 937.00
Breakup of Auditors' remuneration
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Statutory Audit 32.00 26.00
Tax audit 5.00 2.00
Total 37.00 28.00
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Note 28 - Tax expense

a. The components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 are:

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2023 March 2022
Current tax 577.39 1,476.32
Income tax of earlier years 177.57 321.26
Deferred tax (89.22) 147.24
Total tax charge 665.74 1,944.82
Current tax including income tax of earlier years 754.96 1,797.58
Deferred tax (89.22) 147.24
b. Reconciliation of the total tax charge

The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would apply if all profits had been charged at
india corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for
the vears ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is, as follows:

Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2023 March 2022

Accounting profit before tax 2,743.93 6,002.52
Applicable tax rate 2517% 25.17%
Computed tax expense 690.65 1,5610.84
Tax effect of :

Disallowance of CSR/ donation expenses 43.46 38.63
Disallowance on account of section 36 (1) (viia) 7410
Income tax of earlier years 177.57 321.26
Others (245.9)

Tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 665.74 1,944.82
Effective tax rate 24.26% 32.40%
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Note 28 - Tax expense (Continued)

c Deferred tax assets/liabilities

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the income tax expense:

Deferred tax asset

As at
31 March 2022

Statement of
profit and loss

As at
31 March 2023

Differences in WDV of fixed assets 39.24 17.86 - 57.10
Unamortised Processing fees Income 71.14 15.55 86.69
ECL provision on financial assets 1,567.03 (16.65) 1,550.38
Provision for MTM gain/loss on investment - - -
Provision for Gratuity 47.48 12.95 2.09 62.52
Lease Accounting 1.31 1.29 - 2.60
Modification loss on bank borrowing 41.42 (30.69) 10.73
Modification gain on loans and advance - - -
Fair valuation of security deposit 216 (0.53) - 1.63
Provision for leave encashment 4.64 3.14 7.78
1,774.41 2.92 2.09 1,779.43
Deferred tax liability
Unamortised fees on borrowings 27.71 (18.71) 9.00
Unrealized gain on mutual funds at FVTPL 111.47 (67.59) - 43.88
139.18 (86.30) - 52.88
Net Deferred tax asset/liability 1,635.23 89.22 2.09 1,726.55
As at Statement of As at
1 April 2021 profit and loss 31 March 2022
Deferred tax asset
Differences in WDV of fixed assets 23.23 16.01 - 39.24
Unamortised Processing fees Income 119.48 (48.34) - 71.14
ECL provision on financial assets 1,574.91 (7.88) 1,567.03
Provision for MTM gain/loss on investment 15.32 (15.32) -
Provision for Gratuity 37.59 12.79 (2.90) 47.48
Lease Accounting 1.37 (0.06) 1.31
Modification loss on bank borrowing 85.21 (43.79) 41.42
Modification gain on loans and advance 7.72 (7.72) -
Fair valuation of security deposit 0.43 1.73 - 2.16
Provision for leave encashment 4.08 0.56 4.64
1,869.34 (92.03) (2.90) 1,774.41
Deferred tax liability
Unamortised fees on borrowings 83.97 (56.26) 27.71
Unrealized gain on mutual funds at FVTPL 111.47 111.47
Modification gain on loans and advance - - -
83.97 55.21 139.18
Net Deferred tax asset/liability 1,785.37 (147.24) (2.90) 1,635.23

[
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Note 28 - Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of

equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential

equity shares into equity shares of the Company.
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended 31 ended 31 March,
March, 2023 2022

Basic

Profit after tax (Rs.) 2,078.19 4,057.70
Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding 28,99,76,296 28,99,76,296
Basic EPS (Rs) 0.72 1.40
Diluted

Profit after tax (Rs.) 2,078.19 4,057.70
Weighted average number of shares outstanding for diluted EPS 28,99,76,296 28,99,76,296
Diluted EPS (Rs) 0.72 1.40
Face value per share (Rs) 10.00 10.00

Note 30 - Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Based on the information available with the Company, few of the vendors are registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosure relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end under this Act has been given. There are no
Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at 31 March 2023.

Particulars

As at 31 March
2023

As at 31 March
2022

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year
end

43.98

28.25

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day
during the year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already
made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years
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Note 31 - Employee benefit plan

Disclosure in respect of employee benefits under Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefit are as under:

(@

(b)

Defined contribution plan

The Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans. The
Company’s contribution to provident fund aggregating INR 39.55 lakhs (31 March 2022: INR 34.09 lakhs) has been recognised in the statement
of profit and loss under the head emplovee benefits expense.

Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity

Financial assets not measured at fair value

The Company operates a defined benefit plan (the "gratuity plan") covering eligible employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided
depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age/ resignation date.

The defined benefit plans expose the Company to risks such as actuarial risk, investment risk, liquidity risk, market risk, legislative risk. These
are discussed as follows:

Actuarial risk: It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:

Adverse salary growth experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an increase in obligation at a
rate that is higher than expected.

Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than the gratuity benefits will be paid
earlier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an actuarial loss or
gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and discount rate.

Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the gratuity benefits will be
paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date.

Investment risk: For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair
value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can
result in wide fiuctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation
period.

Liquidity risk: Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of
such employees resign / retire from the Company, there can be strain on the cash flows.

Market risk: Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One actuarial
assumption that has a material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads
to decrease in defined benefit obligation of the plan benefits and vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the government bonds
and hence the valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

Legislative risk: Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the
legislation/regulation. The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to
the employees. This will directly affect the present value of the defined benefit abligation and the same will have to be recognized immediately in
the year when any such amendment is effective.
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(Rupees in lakhs)
Note 31 - Employee benefit plan (Continued)
(b) Defined benefit plans: (Continued)

The status of gratuity plan as required under ind AS-19 is as under:

(Amounts in lakhs)

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

i. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligations at the beginning of the year
Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Acquisition adjustment

Benefit paid

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:

Change in demographic assumptions

Change in financial assumptions

Experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions)

Present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of the year

ii. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year

Transfer in / (out) plan assets

Expenses deducted from the fund

Interest income

Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income
Assets distributed on settlements

Contributions by the Company

Assets acquired in an amalgamation in the nature of purchase
Exchange differences on foreign plans

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

iii. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of net defined benefit liability
Net opening provision in books of accounts

Transfer in/(out) obligation

Transfer (in)/out plan assets

Employee Benefit Expense

Amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

Benefits paid by the Company
Contributions to plan assets
Closing provision in books of accounts

188.64
46.82

12.93

-8.26

22.41

(15.44)

1.31
248.41

-8.26

188.64
-8.26

59.75
8.28

248.41

248.41

149.33
41.27

9.57

9.54
(1.99)
188.64

149.33
50.84
-11.54

188.64

188.64

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year
ended 31 March

2022

iv. Expense recognised during the Year
Current service cost 46.82 41.27
Interest cost 12.93 9.57
Past service cost - -
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 59.75 50.84
v. Other comprehensive income
Components of actuarial gainflosses on obligations:
Due to change in financial assumptions 22.41 (9.54)
Due to change in demographic assumption (15.44) -
1Due to experience adjustments 1.31 (1.99)

turi'on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income - -

ponients of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income N \\mﬂ,ﬂ 8.28 (11.54)
AN 12




SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 31 - Employee benefit plan (Continued)

(b) Defined benefit plans: (Continued)

vi. Principal actuarial assumptions
Discount rate (per annum)
Salary Growth Rate

Withdrawal rates per annum

Rate of return on plan assets (p.a.)

As at
31 March 2023

7.45%

10.00%

10.00% p.a at
younger ages
reducing to 2.00%
p.a% at older ages
NA

As at
31 March 2022

6.95%

10.00%

10.00% p.a at|
younger ages
reducing to 2.00%
p.a% at older ages
NA

vii. Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and
withdrawal rates. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at
the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Defined benefit obligation (Base)

For the year ended
31 March 2023
248.41

For the year ended
31 March 2022
188.64

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount rate (- / + 0.5%) 242.54 221,97 108.28 179.74
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity -2.36% -10.64% 5 1% -4.71%
Salary growth rate (- / + 0.05%) 222.16 242.23 179.94 197 95
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -10.57% ~2.49% -4.61% 4.94%
Withdrawal rate (W.R.) (W.R. x 90% / W.R. x 110%) 233.80 230.02 190.72 186.67
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -5.88% -7.40% 10% -1 04%

viii. Asset liability matching strategies

Since the liabilities are unfunded, there is no Asset-Liability Matching strategy deviced for the plan.

ix. Effect of plan on the Company's future cash fiows

a) Funding arrangements and funding policy
Gratuity benefits liabilities of the company are unfunded.

b) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Cash flows (')

Distribution (%)

Expected cash flows over the next {valued on

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

undiscounted basis): 2023 2022 2023 2022

1st Foliowing Year 7.32 4.86 1.00% 1.10%
2nd Following year 8.26 6.44 1.10% 1.50%
3rd Following Year 8.76 7.22 1.20% 1.70%
4th Following Year 9.27 55.23 1.20% 12.80%
5th Following Year 10.32 36.67 1.40% 8.50%
Sum of years 6 to 10 180.41 36.60 24.30% 8.50%

The future accrual is not considered in arriving at the above cash-flows.

The Expected contribution for the next year is Rs. 7.32 lakhs.

The Weighted Average Duration (Years) as at valuation date is 11.09 years.

x. Current and non-current bteak-up

As at 31 March | As at 31 March
Particulars 2023 2022
Current 7.23 4.86
_Non:Current 241.18 183.78
f
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Note 31 - Employee benefit plan (Continued)

(C) Other long term employee benefits

The liability for compensated absences as at the year ended 31 March 2023 and as at year ended 31 March 2022 is as below:

Particulars

As at 31 March
2023

As at 31 March
2023

Liability for Compensated absences at year end

30.91

18.43

Total

30.91

18.43

Current and non-current bteak-up

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

Particulars 2023 2022
Current 3.08 2.31
Non Current 27.82 16.12
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SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 33 - Leases

This note provides information for leases where the Company is a lessee. The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases
for premises.

The office premises are generally rented on cancellable term for period of thirty six months with escalation clause and renewable at the
option of the Company.

The company's leased assets mainly comprise office premises taken on lease. The term of property leases is 3 years. The discount rate
used is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent

financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Total lease liabilities are analysed as at

Denominated in the following currencies: 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Rupees 169.03 208.03
Foreign currency -

Total 169.03 208.03

Maturity of Lease liability

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Current 103.75 80.61
Non Current 65.28 127.42
Total 169.03 208.03

The following amounts were recognised as expense in the year:

Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 105.16 82.69
Expense relating to short-term leases and low-value assets 12.65 6.63
Interest on lease liabilities (included in finance costs) 20.08 12.51
Total recognised in the income statement 137.89 101.83

The following are the undiscounted contractual cash flows of lease liabilities. The payment profile has been based on management's

forecasts and could in reality be different from expectations:

Maturity analysis: 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Less than 1 year 113.98 95.45
Between 1 and 2 years 59.22 95.45
Between 2 and 5 years 8.27 39.77
More than 5 years

Total 181.47 230.67

The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Opening balance 208.03 39.17
Additions during the period 102.68 251.80
Terminate during the pericd (43.54)

Finance cost incurred during the period 20.08 12.51

Payment of lease liabilities (118.22) (95.45)
Closing balance 169.03 208.03

Note: Refer Note 12 for movement in right to use of assets.




SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 34 - Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenses:

The gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year towards CSR is Rs.107.28 lakhs (31 March 2022: Rs.112.20 lakhs) as per
section 135 of the Company Act 2013. Details of amount spent towards CSR as below:

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended 31 March,| ended 31
2023 March, 2022
Gross amount required to be spent by the
company during the year. 107.28 112.20
Amount of expenditure incurred 172.18 139.62

Shortfall at the end of the year -

Total of previous years shortfall** -

Reason for shortfall

For the year ended 31 March, 2023 For the year ended 31 March, 2022
Particul f -
articulars In cash Yet_to be paid Total In cash Yet.to be paid Total
in cash in cash
(i} Construction / acquisition of any assets - - - - - -
(i) On purposes other than (i) above 172.18 172.18 139.62 139.62
Total 172.18 - 172.18 139.62 139.62

Nature of CSR activities

Promoting gender equality and empowering women, child education, water waste management and water conservation, etc.

Note 35 - Related Party Disclosures:

(a) Related party disclosures as required by Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures.

List of related parties and relationships:
Name of Related Parties

Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited
SMCM Holdings Private Limited
Investment Opportunities VI Private Limited

Abhipreet Trading Private Limited

Forbes facility Services Private Limited

Eureka Forbes Limited

Stonesteel Prefab Infra Private Limited

Khvafar Property Developers Private Limited
Bengal Shapoorji Infrastructure Development Private Limited
Mirth Property Developers Private Limited

Mileage Properties Private Limited

Sagar Premi Builders & Developers Private Limited
Shapoorji Pallonji Logispace and Investment Advisors Private Limited
Instant Karmaa Properties Private Limited

Kanpur River Management Private Limited
Kavinam Property Development Private Limited
Kutch Sea Water Desalination Private Limited
Shapoorji Pallonji Forbes Shipping Pvt Ltd

Blue Riband Properties Private Limited

Shapoorji Palionji Energy (Gujarat) Pvt Ltd
Shapoorji Pallonji Infrastructure Capital Co. P Ltd
Flamboyant Developers Frivate Limited

Shapoorji Pallonji And Co KIPL JV

Always Remember Properties Private Limited

Ace Richesse (India) Private Limited

S. D. Corporation Private Limited

Bigsearch Properties Private Limited

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Sanjay Hinduja

Shapoorji Pallonji Mistry

S. Kuppuswamy
Vinod Bhandawat
Shankar Krishnan

Jai Laxmikant Mavani
Mahesh Tahilyani
Pankaj Gupta

Preeti Chhabria

[

Nature of Relationship

Holding Company

Enterprises having significant influence over Company
Enterprises having significant influence over Company
(till 30 December 2022)

Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary

KMP having significant influence over Company
KMP having significant influence over Company

Joint venture of Holding Company
Joint venture of Holding Company

MD & CEO
Director

Director

Director (from 25 August 2022)

Director (from 18 January 2023)

Director (till 25 July

2022)

Director (till 01 Cctober 2022)
Chief Financial Officer

Company secretary
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SHAPQORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 36 - Fair Value Measurement

Valuation Principle

Fair value is the price that would be received on sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or estimated

using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation
techniques, as explained in Note 2.12.

Financial Instrument by Category

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised FVTPL FVOCI Amortised
Financial Asset
Investments
- Equity Instruments 423,12 697.99
- Mutual Funds 517.60 8,070.96
Other Receivables 16.63 65.39
Loans 52,035.82 45,510.31
Cash And Cash 2,649.13 - 16,195.60
Eauivalents
Security Deposits 44.56 36.38
Total Financial Assets 940.72 - 54,746.14 8,768.95 - 61,807.68
Financial Liability
Borrowings 10,334.17 26,082.61
Trade Payables 168.13 52.83
Other Payables 54.98 36.68
Other financial liabilities 169.03 208.03
| Totat Financial - 10,726.31 - - 2638015 |
Liabilities

Fair value Hierarchy

This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financial instrument that are (a) recognized and measured at
fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the
refiability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed under the accounting
standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath table

As at 31 March 2023

. Fair value measurements using
Notes Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investments 7
- Equity Instruments 42312 423.12 - - 423.12
- Mutual Fund 517.60 517.60 - - 517.60
Loans and advances 6] 52,035.82 - - 52,137.23 52,137.23
Other Receivables 5 16.63 - 16.63 - 16.63
Cash And Cash 4 2,649.13 2,649.13 - - 2,649.13
Equivalents
Security Deposits 8 44.56 - 44.56 - 44.56
Total Financial Asset 55,686.86 3,589.85 61.19 52,137.23 55,788.27
Financial Liability -
Borrowings* 15 10,334.17 - - 10,334.17 10,334.17
Trade Payables 14 168.13 168.13 - - 168.13
Other Payables 54.98 54.98 - - 54.98
Other financial liabilities 16 169.03 - - 169.03 169.03
Total Financial Liability 10,726.31 223.11 - 10,503.20 10,726.31

* Borrowings are at floating rate of interest and hence its fair value approximate its carrying value

I



SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs}

Note 36 - Fair Value Measurement {continued)

As at 31 March 2022

Carrying Fair value measurements using
Notes

amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investments 7
- Equity Instruments 697.99 697.99 - - 697.99
- Mutual Funds 8.070.96 8.070.96 - - 8.070.96
Loans and advances 6] 45510.31 - - 47,742.22 47,742.22
Other Receivables 5 65.39 - 65.39 - 65.39
Cash And Cash 4]  16,195.60 16,195.60 - - 16,195.60
Equivalents
Security Deposits 8 36.38 - 36.38 - 36.38
Total Financial Asset 70,576.63 24,964.55 101.77 47,742.22 72,808.54
Financial Liability
Borrowings* 15|  26,082.61 - - 26,082.61 26,082.61
Trade Payables 14 52.83 52.83 - - 52.83
Other Payables 36.68 36.68 - - 36.68
Other financial liabilities 16 208.03 - - 208.03 208.03
Total Financial Liability 26,380.15 89.51 - 26,290.64 26,380.15

* Borrowings are at floating rate of interest and hence its fair value approximate its carrying value

Level 1 : Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that the Company has the ability to
access for the identical assets or liabilities. A financial instrument is classified as a Level 1 measurement if it is listed on an exchange. This includes listed
equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges
are valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued at the closing NAV.

Level 2 : The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active markets is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of
observable market data either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, for substantially the full term of
the financial instrument but do not qualify as Level 1 inputs. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable the instrument is
included in level 2.

Level 3 : if one or more of the significant inputs is not based in observable market data, the instruments is included in level 3. That is, Level 3 inputs
incorporate market participants’ assumptions about risk and the risk premium required by market participants in order to bear that risk. The Company
develops Level 3 inputs based on the best information available in the circumstances.

Financial instruments valued at carrying value

The respective carrying values of certain on-balance sheet financial instruments approximated their fair value. These financial instruments include cash in
hand, balances with Banks, financial institutions and money at call and short notice, accrued interest receivable, acceptances, deposits payable on
demand, accrued interest payable, and certain other assets and liabilities that are considered financial instruments. Carrying values were assumed to
approximate fair values for these financial instruments as they are short-term in nature and their recorded amounts approximate fair vaiues or are
receivable or payable on demand.

Financial instruments recorded at fair value

Investment in equity shares and mutual funds

Investment in equity shares and mutual funds classified by company as fair value through profit or loss, are carried at fair value based on quoted market
prices. If quoted market prices are not available or if the securities were unlisted, the fair values were estimated at the break-up value ascertained from the
entity’s latest financial statements, which is generally considered as unobservable inputs.

Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost

Loans and advances
The fair values of loans that do not reprice or mature frequently are estimated using discounted cash flow modets. The discount rates are based on the
movement in zero coupon yield curve from the loan origination till reporting date. For the purposes of level disclosures loans and advances are categorized
under Level 3. The Level 3 loans would decrease (increase) in value based upon an increase (decrease) in discount rate. Since substantially all individual
lines of credit and other variable rate loans reprice frequently, with interest rates reflecting current market pricing, the carrying values of these loans
approximate their fair values. For purposes of these fair value estimates, the fair values of impaired loans were computed by deducting an estimated
arket discount from their carrying values to reflect the uncertainty of future cash flows.
Reposits
e fair vje f demand deposits and savings deposits without defined maturities are the amounts payable on demand. For deposits with defined
/ maturitie?‘t r values were estimated using discounted cash flow models that apply market interest rates corresponding to imitar deposits and timing
of .
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SHAPOORUJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 37 - Capital

Cca

C.2

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the
capital adequacy requirements of the local banking supervisor, RBI. The adequacy of the Company’s capital is monitored
using, among other measures, the regulations issued by RBI.

The Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period. Equity
share capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of Company’s capital management.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with
externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have
been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by
the Board.

Regulatory capital

Regulatory capital-related information is presented as part of the RBI mandated disclosures. The RBI norms require capital
to be maintained at prescribed levels. In accordance with such norms, Tier | capital of the Company comprises of share
capital, share premium and reserves, Tier |l capital comprises of provision on loans that are not credit-impaired. There
were no changes in the capital management process during the periods presented

ltems As at 31 March [As at 31 March
2023 2022

(i) CRAR (%) 48.05% 47.72%

(i) CRAR — Tier | capital (%) 46.80% 46.48%

(i) CRAR — Tier |l capital (%) 1.25% 1.24%

(iv) Amount of Subordinated debt raised as Tier - || capital -

{v) Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments - -

Note 38 - Capital commitments

Particulars As at 31 March| As at 31 March
2023 2022
Undrawn committed credit lines 250.00
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SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 39 - Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

Mandatorily at Amortised Total carrying

As at 31 March 2023 FVTPL cost amount
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 2,649.13 2,649.13
Other receivables - 16.63 16.63
Loans and advances to customers

Measured at fair value - - -

Measured at amortised cost 52,035.82 52,035.82
investment securities/ units

Measured at fair value 940.72 940.72

Measured at amortised cost - - -
Other assets - 44 .56 44.56
Total Financial assets 940.72 54,746.14 55,686.86
Trade and other payables 223.11 223.11
Borrowings (other than debt securities) - 10,334.17 10,334.17
Other liabilities - 169.03 169.03
Total Financial liabilities - 10,726.31 10,726.31
As at 31 March 2022 Mandajorily at Amortised Total carrying

FVTPL cost amount

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 16,195.60 16,195.60
Non-pledged trading assets 65.39 65.39
Loans and advances to customers

Measured at fair value . .

Measured at amortised cost 45,510.31 45,510.31
Investment securities

Measured at fair value 8,768.95 8,768.95

Measured at amortised cost - -
Other assets 36.38 36.38
Total Financial assets 8,768.95 61,807.68 70,576.63
Trade and other payables - 89.51 89.51
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 26,082.61 26,082.61
Other liabilities 208.03 208.03
Total Financial liabilities 26,380.15 26,380.15




SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 40 - Financial risk management

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management
framework. The board of directors has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards
and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles
and obligations.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures,
and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is
assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management controls
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.



SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)
Note 40 - Financial risk management (continued)
A. Credit risk

Credit risk arises from loans and advances, cash and cash equivalents, deposits and other financial assets carried at amortized cost. This risk is the risk of financial
loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligat ons.

The Company has established a credit qual'ty review process to provide early identification of possible changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties. The credit
quality review process aims to allow the Company to assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is exposed and take corrective actions.

The Company cons'ders probability of defau't upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been any significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as
at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.

Macroeconomic information {such as Real GDP growth rate and Infiation rate) are incorporated as part of the Ind AS 109 provision model.
In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payments are more than 30 days past due.

Definition of Default
A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fai's to make contractual payments within 90 days of when they fall due. This definition of defau't is
determined by considering the business environment in which Company operates and other macro-economic factors.

Provision for expected credit losses
The Company provides for expected credit loss based on following:

Basis for recognition of
Staging Description of category expected credit loss
provision

-Assets-that-have-not-had-a-significant

Stage 1 increase in credit risk since initial 12-month
tage recognition and are not credit-impaired expected
upon origination. credit losses
Assets where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Assets where the payments Life-time
Stage 2 are more than 30 days past due or two expected

notch internal rating downgrade til BBB
and 1 notch rating downgrade from BBB to
C, for rating downgrade “+” and “-" sign are
not taken into consideration.

The Company categorises a loan or
receivable for stage 3 when a debtor fails
to make contractual payments within 90
Stage 3 days from the day it is due. Accordingly

the financial assets shall be classified as
Stage 3, if on the reporting date, it has
been more than 90 days past due.

credit losses

Credit Loss is recognized on full
exposure/ Asset is written off




SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

{Rupees in lakhs)

Note 40 - Financial risk management {(continued)

Segmentation for Loan and Advances

Year ended 31 March 2023

Estimated gross R
Particulars Asset grou carryin Expected credit
group rying losses (Ind AS 109)
amount at default
Corporate Portfolio 58,569.40 6,158.57
Stage 1 L g 43,048.92 4,040.87
Stage 2 Aifv‘;sgs 13,559.68 843.19
Stage 3 1,960.80 1,274.52
Vendor Finance 1,457.15 1.04
Stage 1 1,457.15 1.04
Stage 2 Loans and -
age Advances
Stage 3 -
Total 60,026.55 6,159.62
Stage 1 L ’ 44,506.07 4,041.91
Stage 2 A‘;f/’;sn :25 13,659.68 843.19
Stage 3 1,960.80 1,274.52

Year ended 31 March 2022

. Estimated gross Expected credif__|
Particulars Asset group carrying losses (Ind AS 109)
amount at default -
Corporate Portfolio 51,849.89 6,219.92
Stage 1 Loans and 50,780.16 5,420.41
Stage 2* Advances 1,069.73 799.51
Stage 3 -
Vendor Finance 400.00 5.88
400.00 5.88
giage ; Loans and .
age Advances
Stage 3 - -
Total 52,249.89 6,225.80
Stage 1 I 51,180.16 5,426.29
Stage 2* Advances 1,069.73 799.51
Stage 3 -

*includes additional ECL provision of Rs 694.88 Lakhs in respect one of the borrower based on management assessment.
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SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)
Note 40 - Financial risk management (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include balance of INR 2,649.13 lakhs at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: INR 16,195.60 lakhs) is maintained as cash in hand and
Balances with Company in current accounts and Fixed Deposits with Banks.

Collateral held

The Company's loan portfolic consists of Corporate loans and Vendor Finance loans. Some of the corporate loans are secured by collateral in the form of a first
charge over real estate properties, land, fixed assets, listed equity shares, other securities and floating charges over book debts, receivable and other current
assets. In addition to the collateral as mentioned, the Company holds other types of collateral such as pledge of unlisted shares, personal and corporate
guarantees, demand promissory notes and other liens.

Collateral securing each individual loan may not be adequate in relation to the value of the loan. All borrowers must meet the Company's internal credit assessment
procedures, regardless of whether the loan is secured.

The general creditworthiness of a customer tends to be the most relevant indicator of credit quality of a loan extended to it. However, collateral provides additional
security and the Company generally request that the corporate borrowers provide it. The Company may take collateral in the form of a first charge over real estate
properties, land, fixed assets, listed equity share, other securities, floating charges over book debts, receivable, current assets and other liens and guarantees.

The Company has formulated an internal policy on periodical valuation of collaterals. As per the policy, all collaterals are valued annually except land collaterals
which are valued once in three years.

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

The Company has applied a three-stage approach to measure expected credit losses (ECL) on debt instruments accounted for at amortised cost and FVOCL.
Assets migrate through following three stages based on the changes in credit quality since initial recognition:

(a) Stage 1: 12- months ECL: For exposures where there is no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are not credit-impaired upon
origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events occurring within the next 12- months is recognized.

(b) Stage 2: Lifetime ECL, not credit-impaired: For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not
credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized.

(c) Stage 3: Lifetime ECL, credit-impaired: Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired upon occurrence of one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. For financial assets that have become credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized and interest revenue is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk of its financial assets since initial recognition by
comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the asset. In determining whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company uses information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes the Company’s internal credit rating grading system, external risk
ratings and forward-looking information to assess deterioration in credit quality of a financial asset.

The Company considers defaulted assets as those which are contractually past due by more than 90 days, other than those assets where there is empirical
evidence to the contrary. Financial assets which are contractually past due 30 days or rating is downgraded by two notch rating downgrade till BBB and 1 notch
rating downgrade from BBB to C, lower respectively rated accounts from the initial internal rating are classified under Stage 2 - life time ECL, not credit impaired,
barring those where there is empirical evidence to the contrary. The Company considers financial instruments to have low credit risk if they are rated internally or
externally within the investment grade. An asset migrates down the ECL stage based on the change in the risk of a defauit occurring since initial recognition. Ifina
subsequent period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk since origination, then the loan loss provision
stage reverses to 12-months ECL from lifetime ECL after cooling off period of six months.

The Company measures the amount of ECL on a financial instrument in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount. The Company considers
its historical loss experience and adjusts the same for current observable data. The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the probability of default, loss given
default and exposure at default. These parameters are derived from the Company's internally developed statistical models and other historical data.

Probability of Default (PD)

Due to the absence of optimal default data points to calculate PD for the Company, the combination of ratings issued by external credit rating agencies and the
ratings developed internally by SPFPL are used to determine the quality of its borrowers.

For Corporate Portfolio, internal credit rating has been ulilized post application of Pluto Tasche methodology, wherein the model outputs are scaled using an
external credit rating based PDs for calculation of Probability of default (PD) specific to the company. However, during the current year, the Company has re-visited
the scaling criteria used in the model where, an average of external credit rating based PDs and company's historical defaults are considered for the PD
calculations. These PDs are further adjusted for appropriate confidence interval.

For Vendor Finance, credit rating of anchor Companies have been used based on external credit rating.

Loss Given Default (LGD)

For the computation of LGD, the regulatory LGD rates prescribed by RBI or basis the infernal management assessment have been used. Collateral values were
classified into categories such as financial collateral, financial Receivables, commercial real estate/ residential real estate and other eligible collateral and haircut is
applied based on RBI regulation.

Exposure at default (EAD)

Exposure at default is the total value an entity is exposed to when a loan defaults. It is the predicted amount of exposure that an entity may be exposed to when a
borrower defaults on a loan. The outstanding principal and outstanding arrears reported as of the reporting date for computation of ECL is used as the EAD for all
the portfolios.

Macroeconomic Scenarios

In addition, the Company uses reasonable and supportable information on future econemic conditions including macroeconomic factors: Real GDP growth rate and

Infla ate: Since -incorporating-these-forward-looking-information-increases the judgment as-to-how- the-changes-in-these-macroeconomic factor will-affect. ECL,
logy and assumptions are reviewed regularly. m



SHAPOORJ! PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 40 - Financial risk management (continued)

Write-offs still under enforcement
Financial assets are written-off when the Company has no reasonable prospects of recovering any further cash flows from the financial assets. In the case of assets
that are assessed collectively for impairment, the Company writes-off such assets once there is empirical evidence that no recovery can happen. Amount of INR Nil
(31 March 2022: INR 1,291.28 lakhs) has been written-off in the Financial Year 2022-23. Write off amount shown in note 25 for FY2021-22 is net of INR 25.20 lakhs
of recovery made during FY2021-22.

Modification/Debt restructuring

The Company sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this happens, the Company assesses whether
or not the new terms are substantially different to the original terms. If the terms are substantially different, the Company derecognises the original financial asset
and recognises a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiat'on is consequently considered to be the
date of initial recognition for impairment calculation purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred.

If the terms are not substantialy different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in de-recognition, and the Company recalculates the gross carrying
amount based on the revised cash flows of the financial asset and recognises a modification gain or loss 'n the statement of profit or loss. The new gross carrying
amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets).

Concentration of credit risk
The Company monitors concentrations of credit risk by internal Credit Rating. An analysis of concentrations of credit risk from loans and advances under Corporate
Portfolio and Vendor Finance are shown below.

Corporate Portfolio As at 31 March 2023
Credit Rating EAD Amount {in %)
BB 8,416.94 14.37%
B 37,823.23 64.58%
C 12,329.23 21.05%
Total ———58;569.40-

Vendor Finance As at 31 March 2023
Credit Rating EAD Amount {in %)
Al+ 1,024.65 70.32%
Al 432.50 29.68%

Total 1,457.15
Corporate Portfolio As at 31 March 2022
Credit Rating EAD Amount (in %)
BB 1,445.56 2.79%
B 4,387.20 8.46%
C 46,017.13 88.75%

Total 51,849.89
Vendor Finance As at 31 March 2022
Credit Rating EAD Amount {in %)
IND A3 400.00 100.000%

Total 400.00
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SHAPOORUJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

{Rupees in lakhs)
Note 40 - Financial risk management (continued)

C. Price Risk

(a) Exposure details

The Company's exposure to equity securities/ mutual fund, price risk arises from investments held by the Company and classified in the
balance sheet as at fair value through profit or loss.

To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities and mutual funds, the Company diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of
the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Company.

(b) Sensitivity

The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases of the index on the Company's investment and profit for the period. The
analysis is based on the assumption that the market prices had increased by 10% or decreased by 10% with all other variables held constant,
and that all the Company's equity instruments moved in line with if.

Impact on Profit after tax Impact on other components of

equity
31 March 2023 |31 March 2022 |31 March 2023 |31 March 2022
Increase of 10% in market price 70.39 656.18 70.39 656.18
Decrease of 10% in market price (70.39) (656.18) (70.39) (656.18)




SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)
Note 40 - Financial risk management (continued)
D. Interest rate risk

The company provides loans to customers on fixed rate and hence there is no interest rate risk on loan exposure. However,
certain borrowings are at floating rate and hence exposed to Interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management is as follows.

Nominal amount
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March

2022
Fixed-rate instruments
Loans 58,195.44 51,736.11
Variable-rate instruments
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 10,334.17 26,082.61

The Company has certain floating rate bank borrowings which are sensitive to change in the benchmark rate. The change in 100
basis point in such benchmark may affect the profit and loass account and equity of the company by following amounts -
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity
and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Profit or loss (Pre tax Impact) Equity (Pre tax Impact)
INR Crore 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 100 bp decrease
As at 31 March 2023
Variable-rate instruments (103.34) 103.34 (103.34) 103.34
Cash flow sensitivity (net) (103.34) 103.34 (103.34) 103.34
As at 31 March 2022
Variable-rate instruments (260.83) 260.83 (260.83) 260.83

Cash flow sensitivity (net) (260.83) 260.83 (260.83) 260.83




SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 41 -Disclosure Pursuant to RBI Notification no RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20

Asset Classification as per RBI Asset Gross Loss Net Carrying Provisions Difference
Norms classification Carrying Allowances Amount required as | between Ind AS
as per Ind AS| Amount as | (Provisions)as per IRACP 109 provisions
109 per ind AS required under norms and IRACP
Ind AS 109 norms
1 2 3 4 (5=3-4) 6 (7=4-6)
Performing assets
Standard Stage 1 44,506.07 4,041.91 40,464.16 178.02 3,863.89
Stage 2 13,5659.68 843.19 12,716.49 54.24 788.95
Subtotal 58,065.75 4,885.10 53,180.66 232.26 4,652.83

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Substandard Stage 3 1,960.80 1,274.52 686.28 196.08 1,078.44
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3

1to 3 years Stage 3

More than 3 years Stage 3

Subtotal for doubtful

Loss - - - - -
Subtotal for NPA 1,960.80 1,274.52 686.28 196.08 1,078.44

Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage 1
commitments, etc. which are in the Stage 2
scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered
under current Income Recognition,
Asset Classification and Provisioning

(IRACP) norms Stage 3 - - - -

Subtotal - - - - -
Stage 1 44,506.07 4,041.91 40,464.16 178.02 3,863.89

Total Stage 2 13,5659.68 843.19 12,716.49 54.24 788.95
Stage 3 1,960.80 1,274.52 686.28 196.08 1,078.44

Total 60,026.55 6,169.62 53,866.94 428.34 5,731.27




SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 42 -Disclosure Pursuant to RBI Guidelines on Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking
Financial Companies dated 4 November 2019

i Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposit and borrowings)

Number of Significant Counterparties Amount % of Total deposits | % of Total Liabilities

3 10,326.27 - 84.98%

ii Top 20 large deposits
Not applicable. The Company being a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company
registered with Reserve Bank of India does not accept public deposits.

iii Top 10 borrowings

Amount % of Total Borrowings
10,326.27 100.00%

iv Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

Name of the instrument/product ** Amount % of Total liabilities

Non Convertible Debentures 0.00%
Term loan 6,856.44 56.42%
Overdrafts and working capital limits 3,469.83 28.55%
Total 10,326.27 84.98%

* A Usignificant instrument/product” is defined as a single instrument/product of group of similar
instruments/products which in aggregate amount to more than 1% of total liabilities.

v Stock ratio

Instrument \ As a % of Total Public Funds Liabilities Assets
Commercial Papers - - -
Non Convertible Debentures 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Other Short Term Liabilities 33.60% 28.55% 5.80%

vi Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) of the Company defines its liguidity risk management strategy and
sets the overall policy and risk tolerances.

In order to manage/mitigate liquidity risk, in addition to regulatory limits on liquidity gaps, the Company has also
defined prudential internal limit for Liquidity Gap tolerance for its time bucket which is approved by the ALCO.
Treasury is responsible for managing liquidity under the liquidity risk management framework as approved by the
ALCO.

Liquidity risk management strategies and practices are reviewed to align with changes to the external environment,
including regulatory changes, business conditions and market developments. Actual and anticipated cash flows
generated are monitored to ensure compliance with limits.




SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 43 -Disclosure of details as required by Master Direction - Non-Banking Finance Company - Systematically Important Non-Deposit
taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

Particulars As at 31 March 2023

Liabilities side :
(1) Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs Amount outstanding Amount overdue
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

(a) Debenture * Secured
Unsecured

(b) Deferred Credits

(¢) Term Loans 6,864.34 -

(d) Inter-corporaie loans and borrowing -

(e} Commercial Paper

(f) Public Deposits (Refer Note 1 below) -

(g) Other Loans -working capital facility 3.469.83 -

(2) Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding
public deposits inclusive of interest accrued Amount outstanding Amount overdue
thereon but not paid):
(a) In the form of Unsecured debentures - -
(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where
there is a shortfall in the value of security

(c) Other public deposits

Assets side :

Amount outstanding

Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables {other than those
(3) included in (4) below ):

(a) Secured 10,044.94
(b} Unsecured 48,150.50
(4 Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire counting towards AFC activities Amount outstanding

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :
(a) Financial lease .
(b) Operating lease

(ii) Stock on Hire including hire charges under sundry debtors .
(a) Assets on hire
{b) Repossessed Assets

(iii} Other loans counting towards AFC Activities .
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b} Loans other than (a) above

(5) Break-up of Investments : Amount outstanding
Current Investments :
1. Quoted :

(1} Shares - (a) Equity 423.12
(b) Preference -
(i) Debenture and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (Please specify)

2 Unquoted :
(1) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(i} Debentures and Bonds
(i} Units of mutual funds 517.60
(iv) Government Securities -
(v) Others: Certificates of deposit




Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

Long Term investments :
1. Quoted :
(1) Shares : (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(if) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (Please specify)

2. Unguoted :
(1) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
{v) Others

(6)

Borrower group-wise classification of assets, financed as in (3) and (4) above :

Please see Note 2 below

Category

Amount in Rupees ( Net of provisions }

Secured

Unsecured

Total

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same group
( ¢) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

5,682.99

4,361.95

32,708.57

15,443.93

38,389.56

19,805.88

)

Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current an

(8

in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):

Please see note 3 below

Category

Market Value / Break

up or fair value or
NAV

Book Value

(Net of Provisions)

1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same group
( ¢} Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

423.12

423.12

Other information

Particulars

Amount in Rupees

i

=

(i)

(iii)

Gross Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related parties

(b) Other than related parties

Net Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related parties

(b) Other than related parties

Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

1,960.80

686.28

Notes :

1. As defined in point xix of paragraph 3 of Chapler -2 of these Directions.

2. Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in indian Accounting Standards by MCA
3. All Indian Accounting Standards issued by MCA are applicable including for valuation of investments and other assets as also assets
acquired in satisfaction of debt. However, market value in respect of quoted investments and break up / fair value / NAV in respect of
unquoted investments shall be disclosed irrespective of whether they are classified as fong term or current in (5) above.




SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 44 - Disclosure as per the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines and circulars

Additional disclosure for the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with Master Direction - Non-Banking Finance Company -
Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 are specified

below:

i) Capital to Risk Assets Ratio Disclosure (CRAR)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

(i) CRAR (%) 48.05% 47.72%
(ii) CRAR - Tier | capital (%) 46.80% 46.48%
(i) CRAR — Tier Il capital (%) 1.25% 1.24%

(iv) Amount of Subordinated debt raised as Tier - I capital

(v) Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments

ii) Investments

Sr. No. |Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

1 Value of Investments

(i) Gross Value of Investments
(a) In India
(b) Outside India

940.72

8,768.95

(i) Provision for Depreciation
(a) In India

(b) Outside India

Net Value of Investments
(a) In India
(b) Outside India

(i)

940.72

8,768.95

2 Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

0] Opening balance
(ii) Add : Provisions made during the year
Less . Write-offf write-back of excess provision during the
(iii} year
(iv) Closing balance

60.87

60.87

itiy Details of Derivatives

Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap

Sr. No. [Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
i) The notional principal of swap agreements - -
i) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their

obligations under the agreements
iii) Collateral required by the applicable NBFC upon entering into swaps - -
iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps - -
v) The fair value of the swap book - -

Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives

Sr. No. |Particulars

Amount

i} wise)

Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year (instrument-

i) (instrument-wise)

Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on 31st March 2023

i)

(instrument-wise)

Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective”

iv) (instrument-wise)

Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective"

Risk Exposure in Derivatives - Quantitative Disclosures

Interest Rate

CooUNTY

SR. No. |Particulars Currency Derivatives Derivatives
) i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
T For hedging
e[| Marked to Market Position [1]
6# a) Asset (+) -
b) Liability (-) -
/l’/t?' iii) Credit Exposure [2] -
iv) Unhedged Exposures -
.




SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 44 - Disclosure as per the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines and circulars (continued)

iv) Disclosure relating to Securitisation

Sr. No. [Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No of SPVs sponsored by the applicable NBFC for securitisation
1 transactions
2 Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored
Total amount of exposures retained by the applicable NBFC to comply with
3 MRR as on the date of balance sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures - -
First loss - -
Others -
b) On-balance sheet exposures - -
First loss - -
Others - -
4 Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures - -
i) Exposure to own securitizations - -
First loss - -
Others - -

ii)

Exposure to third party securitisations

First loss

Others

b) On-balance sheet exposures

i)

Exposure to own securitizations

First loss

Others

Exposure to third party securitisations

First loss

Others

Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

Sr. No.

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

i)

No. of accounts

i)

Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC

il

Aggregate consideration

iv)

Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in

earlier years

v)

Aggregate gain / loss over net book value

Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by applicable NBFC

Sr. No. [Particulars As at 31 March 2023 | As at 31 March 2022

i) No. of accounts 3 -

ii) Aggregate value {net of provisions) of accounts sold 2,813.51 -

iii} Aggregate consideration 2,813.51 -
Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in

iv) earlier years - -

v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value - -

Details of non-performing financial assets purchased

Sr. No. |Particulars As at 31 March 2023 | As at 31 March 2022
1 a) No. of accounts purchased during the year -

b) Aggregate outstanding - -
2

a) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year

b) Aggregate outstanding - -

Dgtails of Non-performing Financial Assets sold

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 @'2
)

No. of accounts sold

Aggregate outstanding

N
SNRES

Aggregate consideration received
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SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 44 - Disclosure as per the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines and circulars (continued)

vi)  Exposure to real estate sector

As at 31 March As at 31 March
Category 2023 2022
Direct exposure
i Residential Mortgages
a) Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property
that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented
i, Commercial Real Estate
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates
(office buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial
premlses,' multl-f.amnly' remdgntnal buildings, multi-tenanted 30,000.08 42.226.58
commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels,
land acquisition, development and construction, etc.).
Exposure shall also include non-fund based limits.™
iiii. Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and
other securitised exposures
a. Residential
b. Commercial Real Estate
Indirect Exposure
b) Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing
Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

engaged directly / indirectly in real estate business.

vii) Exposure to capital market

L
*includes INR 26,950.50 lakhs (3T March 2022 INR 38,700-33 Takhs) unsecured exposure 1o Companies currently

Particulars

As at 31 March
2023

As at 31 March
2022

Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible
debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of
which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

42312

697.99

it)

Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or
on clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs /
ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of
equity-oriented mutual funds;

i)

Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds
or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are
taken as primary security;

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the
collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds f.e. where the
primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible
debentures / units of equity oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover
the advances;

Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees
issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

vi)

Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds
/ debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting
promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation
of raising resources;

vii)

Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;

viii)

All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and
unregistered)

Total Exposure to Capital Market

423.12

697.99

WAy



SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 44 - Disclosure as per the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines and circulars (continued)

viii) Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies’' shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

ix)

x)

xi)

Xii)

xiii)

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

1 Provisions for depreciation on Investment -

2 Provision towards NPA 1,274.52

3 Provision made towards Income tax -

4 Other Provision and Contingencies (with details) -

5 Provision for Standard Assets (66.18) (31.29)

Concenfration of Advances

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

1 Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers

NBFC

Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the

48,967.11
81.57%

50,681.99
97.47%

Concentration of Exposures

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

1 Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers

NBFC on borrowers

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / to Total Exposure of the

48,967.11
81.57%

50,931.99
97.48%

Concentration of NPAs

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

1 |Tota| Exposure to top four NPA accounts

1,960.80

Sectorwise NPA (% of NPA to Total Advances in that sector)

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Agriculture and allied activities
MSME

Corporate borrowers
Services

Unsecured personal loans
Auto loans

Other personal loans

N O AW =

3.35%

Movement of NPAs

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)
Movement of NPAs (Gross)
Opening balance
Additions during the year
Reductions during the year
Closing balance
Movement of Net NPAs
Opening balance
Additions during the year
Reductions during the year
Closing balance
Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard
assets)
Opening balance
Provisions made during the year
Write-off / write-back of excess provisions
Closing balance

1.20%

29,764.63
27,803.83
1,960.80

25,709.73
25,023.456
686.28

4,054.90
2,780.38
1,274.52

2,019.98
1,508.74
3,628.72

1,262.98
1,357.87
2,620.85

757.00
150.87
907.87




SHAPOORUJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)
Note 44 - Disclosure as per the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines and circulars (continued)

xiv) Customer Complaints

Particulars As at 31 As at 31
Sr. No. March 2023 | March 2022
Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers
1 Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year
2 Number of complaints received during the year
3 Number of complaints disposed during the year - -
3.1|Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC - -
4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year - -
Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman
5 Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of
Ombudsman - -
5.1 Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman
52 Of 5, number of complaints resolved through conciliation/ mediation/advisories
= lissued by Office of Ombudsman
5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of
" |Ombudsman against the NBFC - -
6 Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those
appealed)
xv} Intra-group exposures
Particulars As at 31 As at 31
Sr. No. March 2023 | March 2022
Total amount of intra-group exposures 38,380.56 33,253.04
i Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures 38.380.56 33 253.04
i Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the NBFC on
borrowers/customers 66.04% 64.35%
xvi) Sectoral Exposure
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Total Total
Exposure(incl Percentage of|Exposure(incl Percentage of
Sectors udes on Gross NPS's |udes on Gross NPS's
balance sheet]Gross NPAS |to total balance sheet|Gross NPAS |to total
and Off exposure in [and Off exposure in
balance sheet that sector  [balance sheet that sector
exposure) exposure)
Agriculture and Allied Activities - - -
2 |Industry
i. Water Treatment Plants 5,635.25 - - -
ii.Electricity Transmission 2,979.94
Others 2,696.31 644.32
Total of Services (i+ii+Others) - 11,211.50 - 644.32 . -
3 |Services
i.Transport Operates - 728.87
ii. Computer Software 2,850.50 4,370.97
iii. Trade 6,737.14 2,004.26 - -
iv. Shipping 2,894.04 - - -
v.Commercial Real Estate 30,000.07 42,226.58 - -
Other Services 4,434.68 1,701.11
Total of Services (i+ii+Others) 46,916.44 51,031.79 -
Personal Loan -
Others - - 3 B A -
[Total - 58,127.94 - 51,676.11 RS P
(4 )
” = >,
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O
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SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)

Note 44 - Disclosure as per the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines and circulars (continued)

xvii - The Company has not obtained any registration from other financial sector regulators.

xviii - During the year, the Company's credit exposure to single and group borrower were within the prudential exposure limits prescribed by RBI. The
total amount of exposure in excess of the prudential limit as at 31 March 2023 is Nil.

xix - The Company has not done financing of parent company products.

xx - During the year there are no penalties imposed on the Company by regulatory authorities.

xxi - Rating assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

Credit Rating

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

Sr. No. |Instrument Agency 2023 2022
1 Bank term loan CRISIL A- A-
2 NCD CRISIL A- A-

xxii - There are no unsecured loans and advances as at 31 March 2023 for which intangible securities such as charge over the rights, licenses,
authority have taken as intangible collateral.

xxiii - There is no unhedged foreign currency exposures as on 31 March 2023.

Note 45 - Financial Ratios

- Numerator / Year ended Year ended o . ]
Sr. No. | Particulars Denominator 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022 % Variance Reason for Variance
Total Capital Fund / Reduction in risk weighted
1 CRAR Total risk weighted 48.05% 47.72% 0.69% asset dpe to reduction in
assets outstanding loans resulting
into higher CRAR
Tier | Capital Fund / Reduction in risk weighted
2 Tier | CRAR Total risk weighted 46.80% 46.48% 0.69%| 2sset due toreduction in
assets outstanding loans resulting
into higher CRAR
Tier | Capital Fund / Reduction in risk weighted
3 Tier Il CRAR Total risk weighted 1.25% 1.24% 0.41% asset dye to reduction in
assets outstanding loans resulting
into higher CRAR
4 Liquidity Coverage Not applicable to company as it is applicable to NBFC with Asset size Rs. 5000 crore and above

Ratio




SHAPOORJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Rupees in lakhs)
Note 46 - Additional regulatory information required by Schedule I

(i) Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

(if) Wilful defaulter
Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority

(iii) Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

(iv) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

{v) Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961,

that has not been recorded in the books of account.

{vi) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(vii) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or
previous year.

{viii)-Compliance with-number-of-fayers-o—companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013

ix) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

x) Borrowing secured against current assets
The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current asset and book debts. The quarterly returns or statements of current
assets and book debts filed by the Company with banks are in agreements with the books of accounts.

xi) Registration of Charges/Satisfaction with Registrar of companies
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be regisetered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

Note 47 - The Code on Social Security, 2020 (Code) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits has received
Presidential assent on 28th September 2020, The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code comes into
effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period
the Code becomes effective.

Note 48 - The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position as at March 31, 2023.

Note 49 - The Company, as detailed in Note 25 to the financial statements, has made provision as at March 31, 2023, as required under the
applicable taw or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts. Further, the Company did not have any derivative contracts as
at March 31, 2023.

Note 50 - There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the
year ended March 31, 20223.




SHAPOORUJI PALLONJI FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

{Rupees in lakhs)

Note 51 - Events after reporting date

There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.

Note 52 - Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, where necessary

For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
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